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JJB Sports is one of the UK’s leading multi-channel sporting
goods retailers operating out of over 185 stores across the
UK and Ireland with a comprehensive e-commerce offering.
We are building JJB into a market leading sports brand by
giving access to top quality performance products that suit
the needs of all our customers, who range from spectators
through to performance athletes.

Our product offering covers an ever growing range of sports
and brands delivered via an evolving multi-channel platform
with a clear focus on customer service.

The business has been through much change in recent years
and is currently going through a major restructuring to serve
the market and its customers more effectively. By striving to
provide choice, excellent service and competitive pricing for
our customers over the next few years and beyond, JJB wiill
complete its turnaround plan and deliver our vision of a true
authentic multi-channel sporting goods retailer.
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Our last financial year was another significant one in

JJB's history As has been well documented, the early

part of the year was dominated by the need to stabilise

the financia! posiion of the business and dunng this

time we completed

> Two capital raisings through Firm Placing and Placing
and Open Offers rarsing combined gross proceeds
of £96 Smillion,

> A Company Voluntary Arrangement (*CVA”) with our
landlords enabling us to reduce our overhead base,

> A Caprial Reorganisation,

> Atransfer to the AIM from the main Iist of the London
Stock Exchange, and

> Are-negotiation of a three year extension to our
existing bank facimes

These actions provided an gpportunity to commence
the tumaround m business performance However, as
I set out below, whilst many positive things have been
achieved and our trading performance improved In the
second half of the year, the actrons we have taken have
not delivered the scale of improvernent required In the
timefrarne onginally envisaged at the trme of our capital
raisings In ight of this, the Board concluded that

both additicnal caprtal and expertise was required

to complete the turnaround and to this end has been
seeking a strategic investment partner to fulfil this role

Qur search has been successful and | am delighted

o announce that subject to shareholder approval,
Dick’s Sporting Goods, Inc (*Dick’s”) has agreed to
become a strategic partner to our business In addition
to the significant caprtal resources to be provided,

the Board is of the view that the introduction of Dick’s
as a strategic partner will enable the Company to draw
upon Dick’s valuable expenence in the sports retall
market, which, In tumn, will agsist management in
accelerating the Group’s revised business plan Dick's
15 an authentic full-ine sporting goods retaller based

In the USA, offering a broad assortment of brand name
sporting goods equipment, apparel and footwear

N a specialty store ervironment We beleve that this
partnership will enable the business to complete

its turnaround plan and deliver our vision of a true
authentic multi-channe! sports retaller

In addition, our existing mayjor shareholders continue
to be tremendcusly supportive of the business and
will again participate 1n this round of investment The
Compeany miends fo raise £30 million {before expenses)
by way of an exercise of warrants by our major
shareholders, a private placement of shares with

our major shareholders and Dick’s and an 1ssue of
Convertible Loan Notes to Dick’s The Board has also
reached agreement with adidas Group, one of the
Company's key suppher partners, for the provision

of a trade loan to assist i funding the Group’s store
transformation programme, and an agreement with
Bank of Scotland {(*Bo3"), the Company’s lender,
regarding the continued provision of our Bank faciities
through to 31 May 2015 Once agam | would ke

to place on record my thanks to these and other
stakeholders for the support they have shown

and cantinue 1o show the business

Detalls of the Investment package are set out on
page 77 of the Report and Accounts

Qur strategy

The Company has made progress in implementing

the Group’s revised business plan, however, In ight

of the increasingly poor macroeconomic conditions,

management was forced to priontise the preservation

of cash in the short term and scale back its investment

In store and propositton development, particularly in

respect of those stores that management has identified

as requinng a full transformational refit In spite of this,

achrevements so far Include

> The closure of the first 41 CVA stores,

> Operationalising our plans to drive continuous
improvemeant across the Company’s basic retail
disciphnes, product souraing, market planning,
allocation and supply chain to forecast milestones,

> Rolling out training to all In-store colleagues covenng
customer service, management techniques and
improving product knowledge,

> Establishing a muti-channel programme to dnve
Impravements in on-line capabilty, algned to the
n-store channel experience Our second half
lke-for-like growth In multi-channe! sales was
77 per cent compared to a first half of 15 per cent,
and

> Reducing the Company’s cost base, by working
systematically through identified areas of cpportuntty,
including savings at the Company’s Retaill Support
Centre In Wigan We have already begun to
realise cost savings In respect of warehousing and
distribution, store wages and central overhead costs
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Overview

Chairman’s statement contnued

Successful completion of the strategic investment and
financing package will mprove the Group’s working
capital position and help to implement the Group’s
capital expenditure plans, particularly in respect of

1ts store transformation programme and multi-channel
offering Over the course of the next 18 months
management intend to transform up to 60 stores into a
format recently tnalled wath success at our Broughton
store near Chester

Qur Board
There have been some changes to the Board dunng
the penod under review

Richard Bernstein joned the Board on 6 May 2011
following his normination by Crystal Amber Fund and on
1 November 2011 Lawrence Chnstensen also joined the
Board Both have already brought ther own expertise
to the Company which will help in delivering JUB’s
turnaround strategy In addition Lawrence has taken on
the role of Charrman of the Remuneration Committee

As has previously been announced Richard Manning
and Alan Benzie left the Board at the Company's
Annual General Meeting in July 2011 Following Alan's
departure our Senior Independent Director, David
Adamns became Charman of the Audit Committee

Qur colleagues

As ever | would like to thank all our colleagues for ther
continued hard work and contribution to our turnaround
in a tme of contmnuing change

Going concem

In deternuining the appropnate basis of preparation

of the Annual Report, the Directors are required to
consider whether the Group can continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future, that 1s for at least
12 months from the date of signing of this Report After
making enquines, and considering the matters which
are described in the Annual Report, the Directors have
concluded that they have a reasonable expectation
that the Group and the Company will have adeguate
resources to continue N operational existence for the
foreseeable future However, the Directors have
concluded that there are matenal uncertainhes facing
the business Further details are set out inthe
Corporate Governance section of this Annual Report
and Accounts

Outlook
Looking ahead, the ongoing credit squeeaze on
consumers and weaker UK employment numbers
creates a tough environment However the platform

we have bullt over the past 12 moniths and strategic
nvestment and financing package the Company has
announced today have given JJB a ¢chance to complete
Its turnaround programme

Mike McTighe
Chairman
4 Apnl 2012
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Chief Executive’s review

Overview

The 52 week period to 29 January 2012 has once
again proven 1o be an extremely challenging tme
for the Company

Review of operating results

The operating resulis for the 52 weeks to 29 January
2012 and the comparative figures for the 52 weeks to
30 January 2011 are summarised below, together with
a review of our turnaround strategy

52 weeks t¢ 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
Total Total
£°000 £000

Continuing operations

Revenue

284,206 362,894

Cost of sales

(182,722)  (238,020)

Gross profit

101,484 124,874

Other operating Income

2,682 1,848

Distribution expenses

{186,732) (20,810)

Admuustration expenses

(21,800)  {24,075)

Seling expenses

(169,084)  (263,649)

Qperating loss

(103,450)  (181,812)

Adjusted operating loss*

(56,242)  (73,856)

“  Adusted operating loss i1s shown before charging exceptional operating iterns of £47 2 million largely attnbutable to ncreases in property
provisions imparment of tangible and intangible assets, an HMRC provision and reorganisation ¢osts ncurred durng the Group s
restructunng m the penod (2011 £(92 &) milhon — goodhwll inpanment £(15 4) mithon — other dems), as shown in the Consoldated siaternent

of financial performance

Strategy and progress

Since completion of the Apnl 2011 Capitat Raising and
the Company's move to trading on AIM on 28 April 2011,
the Board has progressed with the key elements of the
Group's revised business plan as follows

> Rightsizing the store portfolio through
implementation of the CVA — The Group has
successiully implemented the first phase of the
CVA with 41 of the 43 stores identified for closure
on or before 24 Aprl 2012 (referred to in the
CVA Proposal Document as the “First Peniod
Compromised Leases”) now closed, of which
11 have been surrendered to the landiords, generating
an annualsed rent saving of £1 8 millon For the
rernaining two stores that were identified as First
Penod Compromised Leases, rents continue to
be paid on a reduced basis of 50 per cent of the
contractual lability (plus 5 per cent dilapidations and
any contractual armount for service charges) until
24 April 2012 For the additional 46 stores identified
for closure on or before 24 Apnl 2013 (referred to
In the CVA Proposal Dogument as the “Second
Period Compromised Leases"), 12 stores have been
surrendered to the landlords as at 29 January 2012,
generating an annualised rent saving of £1 7 million
and one store has returned to the core estate For
the remaining 33 stores that were identiflied as
Second Period Compromised Leases, rents continue
to be paid on a reduced basis of 50 per cent of the
contractual habiity (plus 5 per cent dilapidations and
any contractual amount for service charges) and
will continue to be paid untl 24 Apnl 2013 As at 23

January 2012, management has also achieved
annuaised rates savings of approximately £2 8 million
Management estmate savings of approximately £4 O
millon N negative contribution and further Incremental
waorkang capital savings

> Aligning the Company’s cost base and working
capital management — Management has secured
significant cost savings across all key business
functions Warehouse and distribution costs have
reduced by £4 1 milion from £20 4 milion to
£16 3 millon, with estimated annualised savings n
axcess of £5 6 milion now identified as compared
to management’s onginal target of £3 5 milion (as
announced on & April 2011), with further opportunities
identified beyond this onginal target Through better
deployment of our colleagues particularly at peak
trading penods, management has achieved savings
in respact of core store wages of £5 1 rmullion, again
with estimated annualised savings In excess of
management’s onginal target of £3 3 milion (as
announced on G Aprd 2011) Other store casts and
central costs have also been reduced on a systematic
basis through better procurement, iImproved utiisation
and efficiencies and tighter cost control processes,
with actual annualised savings exceeding
management'’s onginal target of £2 4 million (as
announced on 6 Apnl 2011) In addition, the Company
continues 1o prudently manage its working capital,
cash and avalable resources and has targeted an
acceleration of its stock efficiency intratives through
better management of stock intake, mproved stock
allocation and replerushment and being more
pro-active in respect of in-season stock clearance
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Business review

Chief Executive’s review contnued

> Improving the Company’s basic retail disciphines
- Management has made significant progress in
improving the basic retal discipines n the Company
Singe completion of the Apnl 2011 Capital Rassing,
management has been defining and Implementing
key processes and systems, and dentifying and
recruiting new talent particularly to advance the
Company’s buying, merchandising, marketing and
mutti-channel functions Management 1s confident
that it now has clear wistbility around stock intake,
mproved stock allocation, better stock sell-through,
defined clearance capability and improved stack
file Integnity Improved wisibilty of stock intake has
faciitated the development of a mutt-channel trading

and marketing calendar with co-ordinated campaigns

aligned to and supported by key suppler partners

> Investment n store development — The Company
announced on 6 Apri 2011 (in connection with the
April 2011 Gapital Raising) that 1t had devised three
tevels of store and proposition development that
had been incorporated into the Group’s revised
business plan — retall basics, refresh refit and full
transformation Since completion of the April 2011
Capital Rassing, the macroeconomic detenoration
inretal trading conditions led the Group to priontise
the preservation of cash in the short term and scale
back the extent to which the Group was able
to Invast n store and proposition development
Howaever, desprite the challenging trading conditions,
the Group has still completed 103 stores for its
retall basics programme, 8 stores for its refresh
refit programme and 2 stores for full transformation
The refit programme cascaded the key natves
from the enginal 6 transformation stores Including
navigation, product adjacencies, space mix and
point of sale These store programmes were
completed at a sigrificantly lower cost than originalty
budgeted, this supported the improverment in
second half performance The Group’s capital
expenditure In respect of stores forming part
of the refresh refit programme was £0 3 million,
a considerable saving on onginal estmates

> Continuing to source new ranges and product —

The Company's own-brand deveiopment has ganed
momenturn, with the ntroduction of an own-brand
swimming range H20 in September 2011, and
expansion of the exclusive Run 365 footwear and
apparel range n October 2011 In addition, the
Company has added Mind, Body & Soull, Travel Fox,
Ecko Unitd and Pro Performance as exclusive
branded products in the second half of 2011 In
aggregate, exclusive and own branded product

was 6 7 per cent of the sales mix at year end
Management continues to work closely with all

its key supplier partners to develop exclusive and
differentiated products and propositions Recent
additions include ASICS and Saucony, which also
underpin the Company's positioning as the authentic
mult-channel sports retaling brand in the UK

In addition, management has developed a number
of new service Inttiatives, such as introducing Gart
analysis Into a number of stores to ensure each
customer 1s fitted with the night footwear for them
and therr sport We have also bultt on the successful
Footwear Recycling intiative, where in excess of
25,000 training shoes have been recycled, with

the proceeds going to Whizz Kids who provide
wheelchairs to enable children to participate in sport

> Focusing on customer service traimng and people

capabiiity training — Customer service and people
capability traning remains a key objectve for
management and remains a kay differentiator in the
market Since completion of the Aprl 2011 Caprtal
Ralsing, the Company has significantly upgradec
its senior management team and invested in new
personnel to the Group's Retall Support Centren
the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

In addrtion, the Company has recruited 10 new store
managers externally, completed customer service
traning for over 4,000 colleagues, graduated

26 colleagues from its “stepping inte management”
personal development programme, and trained

191 store managers n sales floor coaching

> Improving the multi-channel proposition — Following

the recrutment of a new Head of Mutti-channet on

4 July 2011, the Company has made progress in
enhancing 1ts muth-channel proposiion resulting in
significant growth in sales Developments nclude the
launch of a mobile version of the website, introducing
Paypal and developing an eBay and Amazon offering
In agidibon, the Company has enhanced the online
customer shopping expenence by adding new onling
exclusive products as well as improving the landing
pages and site navigation Alongside other initatives
and mprovements this has provided customers with
an easier and more convenient shopping expenence
and resulted n significantly increased traffic and
conversion rates
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Ongoing retail operations

Revenue from ongomg retall operations for the 52
weeks to 29 January 2012 decreased by £78 7 million
{217 per cent) compared to the previous accounting
penod as a result of store closures and reflected a
like-for-like decrease of 13 1 per cent (on operating
units that have been trading in the same format for
over 52 weeks)

Qverall gross margin from ongomg retad operations
increased to 35 7 per cent from 34 4 per cent for the
prior year

Cumulative ike-for-like sales in the second half

of the financial penod for the 26 weeks ended

29 January 2012 decreased by 76 per cent compared
to a decrease of 17 9 per cent in the 26 weeks ended
31 July 2011 However, in the same pencd, our
like-for-ike cash gross margin increased by 0 3 per cent
compared to a decrease of 37 4 per cent in the

first half Cperating costs before exceptional items for
the 52 weeks to 23 January 2012 have decreased

by 20 0 per cent to £160 4 milion from £200 6 mullion

At the pencd end the Company compnsed 190
(2011 247) frading retail stores operating from 2 1 rrullion
square fest (2011 27 millon square feet) of retadl space

Operating loss

Operating loss from the ongoing retaill operations

was £103 5 milion (2011 £181 8 mulhon), after charging
excepttonal operating items of £47 2 million, compared
to £108 0 milion in 2011 Principal exceptional tems
this period were provisions of £15 0 million relating to
property provisions, an imparment of brand licences
of £7 8 milion as a result of uncertainties of asscciated
future cash flows, an HMRC provision of £5 3 million, an
impairrment of fixed assets of CVA stores of £6 8 milion
and an imparment of £4 7 millon on review of the
tangible assets of stores which are loss making and
are expected to contnue making losses The pringipal
excephonal tem in 2011 related to an imparrment to the
carrying value of goodwill in respect of Blane Leisure
Umited and Sports Drvision (Brreann) Limited and was
included within selling expenses Operating loss from
ongoing retall operations before excephonal tems was
£56 2 milion (2011 £73 8 million)

There has been an improvement In aperating
performance in the second half of the accounting
penod Operating loss from ongoing retal operatons
hefore exceptional tems in the second half of the penod
was £(19 5) milllon compared to £{36 7) milkon in the
first half of the pernod

Full details are shown on the face of the Consolidated
statement of financial periormance

Overview

Business review @

Governance

Fnancal siaternents

Corporate information

Net loss before taxation
The net loss before taxation decreased to a £101 1 mikon
loss from a £181 4 million loss n the pnor penod

Taxation
Owing to the losses incurred there 1s no taxation
payable

Loss per share

Continuing operations

Bastc loss per Ordinary Share for the 52 weeks

to 29 January 2012 was 40 40 pence compared to

72 45 pence (represented — see note 13} in the previcus
accounting pericd The loss per share has decreased
due to the decrease in operating losses from

£181 8 miflion to £103 5 milion ncluding a reduction in
exceptional itemsto £47 2 milhon (2011 £108 O million}
The adjusted basi loss per Ordinary Share (before
deduction of exceptional tems) for the 52 weeks to

29 January 2012 was 21 54 pence compared to

29 33 pence (represented - see note 13) in the
previous accounting penod The number of shares

for the purpose of basic loss per Ordinary Share and
adjusted basic loss per Ordinary Share has been
adjusted retrospectively In 2011 1o take account

of the Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offers
completed during February 2011 and Apnt 2011
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Busineass review

Chief Executive’s review continued

Key performance indicators

Dunng the period under review the Board monitored
its performance by reference to a number of key
performance indicators {“KPIs™) of which the most
important were

52 weeks to 52 weeks fo
29 January 30 January
2012 2011
Financial KPls
Change in like-for-like
revenug (131)% 59%
Gross margin 357% 34 4%
Cash flow from operations £(78 6)m £(719m
Net debt £11 3m £18 8m
Inventonies £47 3m £527m
Inventones less trade
payables £29 6m £14 3m
Non-financial KPls
Retall selling space (sq ft) 2,095,000 2,748,000
Number of full tme
equvalent employees 2,866 3779

In order to measura and monitor the success of s
turnaround plans the Board has developed a more
comprehensive set of financial and non-financial KFls
aligned to each element of the plan which are reported
on a regular basis These include conversion rates
within stores, conversion rates for multi-channel,
average transaction value and mutti-channel like-for-ike

Review of Statement of financial position

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwilk has been subject to an imparrment review as
at the perod end date and no impairment was found to
ba necessary as at 29 January 2012 This value remains
at £13 8 milkon

Cther intangible assets, represented by brand licences,
have been mpaired by £7 8 milhlon due to uncertainty
around associated future cash flows (see note 15)

Capital expenditure

Caprital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
for tha 52 weeks to 29 January 2012 was £2 9 million
compared to £4 1 millon in the previous accounting
penod This capital expenditure was principally incurred
on the refurbishment of stores and the opening of

two new stores relocated dunng the period

Property plant and equipment

As a result of a review of the camrying value of the
tangible assets within the Group, the Group has
recognised an imparment of £6 8 millon on the
closure of stores within the 2011 CVA and an
imparment of €4 7 million on the tangible assets of
stores which are loss making and are expected 1o
continue making losses Tangble assets of £1 0 mulllon
have also been wntten off on the closure of one of the
remaining soccerdomes

Inventories

The value of nventories at 29 January 2012 was

£47 3 milion compared to £52 7 mition at 30 January
2011 This decrease 1s due to the reduction in the
number of stores offset by a reassessment of
provisioning requirements as at the pernod end date

Net debt

The Group's net debt at 29 January 2012 was £113
million compared to £18 8 million at 30 January 2011
The pnncipal reason for this reduction is the net funds
from the capnal raisings ofiset by the net cash cutflow
from operations of £78 6 milion

Trade and cther payables

Trade and other payables have reduced to £45 7 million
at 29 January 2012 from £68 4 milion at 30 January
2011 owing to the reduction in the stock values at

the penod end and a reduction in credntor days owing
to the repayment of trade creditors which were overdue
as at 30 January 2011

Dnadend

The Board is unable to recommend payment of a
dividend In respect of the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012
{2011 nil)

Share capital

Details of the share capital movements, inctuding the
two Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offers referred
to earlier, and the Caprtal Reorganisation are descrnibed
in note 26 of the Notes to the Financial statements

The mid-market share price of the Ordinary Shares at
the close of business on 27 January 2012 was 1150
pence, representing an equity market capitahsation
of approximately £33 7 million




07 JJB Sports ple Annual Report and Aceounts 2012

Director update

There have been the following changes to the Board

over the last 12 months

> On 6 May 2011, Richard Bernstein was appointed
to the Board as a Non-executive Director apponted
by Crystal Amber Fund Limited

> 0On 8 July 2011, Richard Manning and Alan Benzie
resigned as Legal and Operations Director and
Non-executive Director respectively

> 0On 1 November 2011, Lawrence Chnistensen
Joined the Board as a Non-executive Director

Events after the Statement of financial position date
Please refer to note 42 of the Notes to the Financial
statements on page 77

Prncipal nsks and uncertainties

The process to strengthen the internal control
environment of the Company and its business has
continued to develop since the last Annual Report,
and the Board continues to identify and review key
business risks and oversee the development of
processes to ensure that these risks are managed
appropriately Executive Directors and senior
management are delegated with the task of
implementing these processes and the Executive
Directors are charged with reporting to the Board

on their outcomes Alongside the nsks surrcunding the
going concern assumptions which are discussed fully
on pages 40 to 42 the key rnsks identified by the Beard
include

Business plan

JJB has finalsed a revised business plan with the aim
of restoring the viability of the Group’s business model
and returning the business to profitability in the longer
term The key components include a mult-channel
retall offenng, revised store format and tayout and
comprehensive internet faciibes, and targsted product
offenngs The plan assumes certain assumptons and
judgements relating to, amongst other things, future
market conditions and consumer preference If these
assumptions and Judgements were 1o prove Incorrect,
or the key components were 1o fail, the targeted benefits
of the business plan may nct matenalse which could
affect the Group's business, financial condition or results
of operations which in turn could affect headroom on
cash facilties and covenants

As part of developing the Group's revised business
plan, JJB has identified and has either commenced
mplementation or intends to mplement cost savings
through various inatives The achievability of such
savings and estmated costs of achieving such savings
relate to future actions and circumstances which,

by their nature, nvolve nsks, uncertantes and other
factors The Board wil continue to monitor cost saving
iniiatives and related expenses to ensure they are
consistent with the revised business plan

Overview
Businessreview @

Governance

Financial statemerts

Corporate information

As part of mplementing a sustanable operating model
going forward, the Group has endeavoured and Is
continuing to endeavour to make significant operational
Improvernents and efficienctes wathin its buying
function Inefficient buying procedures and inadequate
stock management processes can mean the Group
operates at a competrtive disadvantage and fails

to maximise sales By introducing well managed
automated systerns and processes that control

the ordenng, management and distnbution of i
stock, together with the recruitment of expenenced

management, the Group ams to reduce these

operational risks

Economie conditions

In common with most retaillers, JJB's results can be
affected by a number of economic conditions Including
interest rates, the avallability of consumer credit,

the level of inflation and movements N consumers’
disposable income All these factors affect the level of
consumer confidence and can impact upon revenue
achieved This 1s particularly relevant at the current
time where present economic conditions are having

a particularly adverse effect upon consumers’ buying
habits In order to mihigate these economic nsks,

JJB needs to remain competitive through the offer

of a wide range of products at reasonable prices and
through a strong and cost-effective property portfolio

Competrtion

JJB's retail store chain operates in a particularly
competitive part of the retail sector and therefore ts
degree of competitveness 1S to some extent affected
by the retall pnoing pohcies of iIts competitors which
In turn impacts upen JJB's margins, profitability and
market share JJB continues to re-posttion itself within
the market and refocus on iIts retall strategy offering
quality ranges at varying price points, together with
improving its muti-channel capabilty, the qualty of
its store portfolio and its service offering

Key personnel

The success of JUB 1s partly dependent upon the
continued service of its key management personnel
and upon 1is abiity to attract, motivate and retain
suttably qualfied employees The Group structure
15 continually reviewed to ensure /15 consistent with
the Company's operations and strategy to drive the
business forward Appropriate remuneration packages
will be offered to ensure that key employees are
recruited, retained and motvated as well as offenng
sutable career development opporturites
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Business review

Chief Executive’s review contnued

Supphers

JB 1s dependent upon 1ts mgjor suppliers continuing

t0 support the Group's business and to design and
produce quality product ranges for sale within its retail
stores JJB requires major supplers to prowide products
at wholesale prices that will enable JJB to maintain its
margins and 1o compete effectively within the retail
sector JUB continues to develop mutually beneficial
relatronships with its main suppliers and develop
relationships with new supphers

Availability of credit
The future cost and avallability of finance will affect
the abilty to undertake imvestment and expansion

Treasury and financial nsks

JJB Is subject to treasury and financial 1isks arnising from
the secunty of ts existing funds, the ongoing avalability
of new funds and fluctuations in interest and exchange
rates The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing
with creditworthy counterparties and monitors its
funding requirements by regular funds forecasting

The Board reviews regularly any requirement to protect
the Group against fluctuations in interest rates and
exchange rates

IT systems and business continuity

JJB 18 dependent upon the continued avarlability and
ntegrity of its computer systems Its retail and remaning
fitness club operations must record and process

a substantial volume of data and conduct inventory
management accurately and quickly This can only
he achieved on systems that benefit from continuous
enhancements and ongoing Investment in order

1o mimmise the nisk of obsclescence and mamtan
responsiveness to business needs JJB s also
dependent upon the uninterrupted operation of its
computer systems and therefore reliance needs to be
placed upon a disaster recovery plan to replicate the
data stored on s business cnical computer systems
JJB has extensive controls In place to mantan the
rtegrity and efficiency of its IT infrastructure

Revenue dependence on key sporting events

JJB derves some benefit in alternate years from the
sale of replica kits if the national football teams reach
the finals of the two major competitions (the FIFA World
Cup and the UEFA Euro Championships) In order to
mitigate against the nsk of over-dependence on these
key sporting events, JJB continues to implement
measures to reduce the level of dependency on
tournament years by concentrating on all major sporting
events and cffering a wider perennial product portfolio
Duning the forthcoming year, we have the added benefit
of the London 2012 Olympics which is another major
event n the sporting calendar

Logstics and distribution infrastructure

Animportant component of AB's strategy IS to
mantan a secure and efficient Distnbution Centre

in order to ensure prompt and frequent delivenes of
inventery to its retail stores  Any disruption to this supply
chamn could adversely affect the Group's revenue levels

Leasehold property portfolio

The Group's store portfolio 1s held through leasehold
interests, which are generally subject to penodic rent
reviews, lease expmes and renegotations As a result,
the Group Is susceptible to changes in the property
rental market, such as increases in market rents, and
may not be able to renew existing store leases If the
landlord establishes statutory grounds for non-renewal
ar if the leases do not have the benefit of statutory or
contractual nghts of renewal This could have an effect
on the Group's business and overall financral condition
Impending rent reviews and lease expines are
constantly monitored to ensure the Group's property
porifolio s not put at nsk and that new opporiunties
are avalable if required

Keith Jones
Chief Execunve
4 Apnl 2012
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Corporate Social Responsibility

JJB recognises that it has a duty to ensure that its
business 1s conducted in a socially responsible manner
meeting huigh standards m both social and environmental
behaviour Through its employees, the Group aims to
comply wath all applicable laws and, where possible,
exceed best praciice conditions n the markets within
which It operates

The Board is responsible for corporate social

responsibility and it has made the commitments set out

below As noted elsewhere in this Report, the Board

has recently constituted a CSR Committee that wall

pursue a number of new CSR activities that will be

reported onin the future

> Endeavours and mibatives are focused towards
the provision of ethically produced, quality,
valug-for-money products, through a safe and
satisfied workforce in a way that benefits the
communrties within which the Group operates,

= Any negative social and ervironmental impact
within all areas of its operation will be mininused,

> It will monitor the effectiveness of controls in place
o manage corporate social responsibility risks and
changes in new legislation,

> It will apply guiding pnnciples of corporate social
responsibility relating to ethical codes of conduct
and worldwide labour standards, envronmental
impact and social and community 1ssues, and

> Chantable actmties will be pursued and encouraged

Ethical codes of conduct and worldwide labour
standards

JJB seeks to provide its customers with hugh quality,
value-for-money products, sourced from suppliers

and manufacturers who can clearly demonstrate
compliance with JIB’s own codes of practice as well
as internationally accepted standards JJB's Code

of Practice on Socially Responsible Trading and the
Factory Code of Conduct have been accepted by
JJUB's prncipal suppliers and source manufacturers
The Codes are based upon the internationally accepted
princples of the Ethical Trading Intiative Base Code

of Labour Standards and the Model Code of Conduct
devised by the World Federation of the Sporting

Goods Industry

Overigw
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JJUB cares about the labour standards within its global
supply chan and expects Its suppliers to dermonstrate
smilar concerns In order to obtan assurance that

the factories used by JJB's suppliers and source
manufacturers comply with the Factory Code of
Conduct and so promote sustained improvement

in factory working conditions, a factory inspection
methodology 1s In operation The factory inspechon
process ends with follow-up inspections to ensure
the Factory Code of Conduct 1s being adhered to

The maonty of JJ8's products are purchased from
the UK subsidianes of major intermational supphers
who generally source their products in the Far East
Through regular meetings with suppliers JB tnes
to ensure that those manufactunng units have
comprehensive compliance procedures and good
working practices in place

JJB applies the same level of corporate social
responsibility commitment towards all of ts own
workplaces, thereby ensunng a safe and healthy,

yet challenging and rewarding work environment
JJB has a Code of Practice on Sccially Responsible
Trading, a Health and Safety Palicy, an Equal
Opportunmes Policy and a Whistle-blowing policy,
together with high standards of employment practice
These polcies, together with store work procedures,
are set out in the Retad Operations Manual at each
workplace They are considered to be effective in
achieving therr stated anmns

The Group's policies are designed to value the human
nghts of all employees, whether directly employed,
sub-contracted or employed within the supply chain

Ermironmental impact

The Board takes into account the environmental impact

of its decisions in the decision-making process

JB’s ervironmental management system operates

i conunction with the nsk management framework

covering core busness management processes

and has five ervironmental principles

» Reduce adverse emvironmental Impacts arising
from the Group operations,

> Ensure effective and efficient use of materials
and energy,

> Operate a waste management system to minimise
waste and maxmise waste recovery,

> Ensure compliance with relevant environmental laws
and codes of best practce, and

> Incorporate the prnciple of sustanable development
through a systematic approach to environmental
management in order to achieve continual
improvement
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Corporate responsibility cortnued

Environmental impact (contnusad)

The Board's policy 1s to source energy-efficient plant
for its new retal stores wherever possible The Board
1s committed to a Carbon Management Prograrmme
that aims to reduce the Group's carbon footprint

and point the way towards achieving a carbon
neutral position

The Board is committed to reducing the Group's

landfill waste from all its operations Wherever possible,
cardboard (the major packaging constituent in the
business) and paper are baled and passed to a recycling
business for reprocessing The usage of cardboard and
paper fell for the fourth year in succession due to the
reduced usage to 1,120 tonnes (2011 1,446 tonnes)
This further reduction in cardboard recycling 1s a
reflection of the reduced number of stores but also
reduced usage of packaging by JJB and the

use of recycled tubs to transfer stock to stores

Chantable and community 1ssues

JJB values the relationships with both 1its customers
and the wider community The Group prowides a
valuable service to the community by supplying a wide
range of competitively pnced sports clothing, footwear
and accessories through its retall stores to enable the
general public to take part in sporting activiies

JJB contmues to support local and national chanties
as well as supporting local sporting teams  Currently,
we provide three of our sites rent free to registered
chanties (our Blackpool site to the Fylde Ex-Service
Liaison Commuittes, a site in St Helens to Willowbrook
Hospice and our Plymouth unit to the local YMCA)

In addition, we have also passed on 20 of our sites
{iIncluding some CVA stores) to Freespace, a chantable
letting agency finding sites for other chanties

A summary of the principal amounts of money raised

for chanties duning the accounting year through

JJB actwvities 1s given below

> £2,146 was raised for Macmillan Cancer Rehef
through the sale of footbal badges Since the
campaign began in 1999 over £1 2 milkon has
been donated to this chanty,

> £7,891 was raised for Breakthrough Breast Cancer
through the sale of pin badges in the Company's
stores, and

> the Company encourages its staff to participate n
events such as Sport Relief and Children in Need,
and employees participate in the London Marathon

During the financial year, JJB launched a shoe recycling
programme  Customers receved a voucher redeemable
against a new pair of sports shoes when they deposited
an old parr in store The money that JJB raises from

the recycling of the shoes 1s to be donated to s chosen
chanty - Whizz-kidz The scheme has proved o be
successful and s to be continued in the future The
Company I1s pursuing a number of other avenues to
sxtend the partnership with Whizz-kidz which already
includes the placement of collection tins within

each store

The Company formed a CSR Committee on 6 May 2011
to further its actmties in the community with a particular
emphasis on charitable 1ssues

JJB made no poltical donations during the current or
previous accounting period

Employment 1ssues

The Group currently employs approximately 4,000

people throughout the UK and overseas (pnncipally

Eire) This has been ancther difficult year for many

employees of the Group and JJB always strives to

be a responsible and valued employer JJB 1s an equal

opportunities employer and as such the followng key

values are respected throughout JJB's operations

> All employees should be treated fairly and equaly
and the workplace should be free from discnmination,
harassment and intimidation,

> Recruitment, retention and progression of employees
1s based solely on personal atuity and competency
for the work In question,

> Disabled persons should emjoy equal opportunities
within the workplace Applications for ernployment by
disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing
in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned, and

> Redundancies will be conducted farly and in
accordance with all apphcable laws

In the event of members of staff becoming disabled,
every effort 1s made to ensure that ther employment
with the Group continues and that the appropnate
training is arranged It is the policy of the Group that the
training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons should, as far as possible, be identical to that
of other employees
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Employee traming

Staff traning and developrment is a major prionty for
JJB and 1s taking on a new focus as the Company
develops its business planning in 2012 and beyond
Colleagues working in store recerve traiing relating
to selling techniques, products, health and safety
and management skills The Group grants financial
support to those employees wishing to obtain relevant
professional qualfications whilst in its employment
Career prograssion Is avallable to employees across
the Group

Employee consultation

The Group places considerable value on the
nvolvement of its employees in matters affecting
them as employees JJB has continued the practice
of keeping employees informed on such matters and
on the vanous factors affecting the performance of
the Group This 1s achigved through regular meetings
invotving Directars, managers and supervisory staff

to convey information about the business as well as via
Company nctice boards and regular emails and blogs
Furthermore, the Group has established an RSC
Employee Forum to assist with communication on a
number of levels, including in relation to redundancy
consultation

The GMB Unicn 15 accepted by the Group to negotiate
collective bargaining on behalf of hourly paid staff within
the Distnbution Centre

Overview
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Employee Sharesave plan
The Group operates a Sharesave plan which 1s open
to all employaes with the relevant length of service with
the Group Three invitations under the Plan have been
made as follows
> September 2007 at an option price of 1,690 pence per
Ordinary Share As at 29 January 2012, the plan had
4 members holding options over 616 Ordinary Shares
> Novernber 2009 at an option price of 232 pence
per Ordinary Share As at 29 January 2012,
the plan had 43 members holding options over
29,147 Ordinary Shares
> November 2010 at an option price of 77 pence
per Ordinary Share As at 29 January 2012,
the plan had 91 members holding options over
458128 Ordinary Shares

All figures quoted are after the Capital Reorganisation
on 21 February 2011

Under the plan, employees can save up to a monthly
imit of £250 and are given an option to buy Ordinary
Shares in JUB, in the case of the September 2007
invitation, at the end of three or five years, and in the
case of subsequent invitations, at the end of three
years, at a discount of 20 per cent of the market value
of the Ordinary Shares at the date of grant The three
year plan under the September 2007 invitation has now
closed There are no performance conditions attached
to the remaining options
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Executive Directors

01 Keith Jones MBA (47)

Chief Executive Officer

Kerth joned the Board on 1 March 2010 as Chief
Executve Officer He was previgusly Group Retal
Director at DSG Internationai pic, the leading electncal
retal group, where he spent the past ten years ina
variety of senior roles Before that he held a number
of posthions within other retail groups, including

Virgin and B&Q He has an MBA from Manchester
Business School

02 Dave Withams BA FCA (45)

Chief Financial Officer

Dave Willems jomed the Board on 17 January 2011 as
Chief Financial Officer He previously held the position of
Finance and IT Director at TJ Hughes Limited, a leading
discount department store chain Prior to joining JJB,
Dave held a number of senior finance roles at Focus DiY
Group Limited, mast recently as Group Finance Director
and Company Secretary He I1s a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants and a former Director in the
Transaction Services dmsion of KPMG He became
Company Secretary of the Company during July 2011

Non-executive Directors

03 Mike McTighe (58}

Chairman

Mike McTighe was appointed Chairman of the Board
of the Company on 23 December 2010 Following

an exscutive career in the medical equipment and
telecommunications industnes, including the chief
executive role at the global operations division of Cable
& Wireless plc, he holds a number of directorships, and
IS currently on the board of OFCOM (the UK’s regulator
of the broadcasting, telecommunications and wireless
communication sectors) He was voted the UK Quoted
Compares 2010 Charman of the Year and currently
serves as Charman of Volex Group plc and WYG
Group ple and 1s the senior independent non-executive
director of Betfar Group plc Mike has previously served
as a director of Allance & Leicester plc and Chairman
and CEO of Carnier1 International SA

04 David Adams M A (Hons), FCMA {57)

Senior Independent Non-executive Director

David Adams was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company on 28 January 2010 He s
currently a Non-executive Director of Halfords Group,
British Retal Consortium (Tracing) and a Trustee and
Non-executive Director of Walk the Walk, a breast
cancer charnty He was Chairman of Jessops from 2007
1o 2012 and he has also held Non-executive positions
at Moss Bros (where he was Non-executive Chairman),
Whittard of Chelsea, Ottakars, Eidos and Alexon
Between 1997 and 2008, David was Finance Director of
House of Fraser, additionally becoming Deputy CEO in
201 Prior to 1997, he held senior positions at Asprey,
Ladbrokes and Burton Group

Overview
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05 Sir Matthew Pinsent CBE (41)

Independent Non-executive Director

Sir Matthew Pinsent was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 31 January 2010 He read
geography at Oxford University before embarking on an
international rowing career that spanned two decades
Dunng that time he won ten World Championship and
four Glympic gold medals In addition Matthew raced
the University Boat Race three times for Oxford winning
twice and has won 14 times at Henley Royal Regatta

In 2005 he was an ambassador for the successiul
London bid to bring the Olympic Games to the UK

He 1s now a joumalist and broadcaster, reporting on

a wide range of sports for the BBC and The Times
newspaper Matthew was awarded an MBE in 1993,

a CBE in 2001 and was knughted in 2005

06 Richard Bemnsiein (48)

Non-executive Director

Richard Bernstein was appointed as a Non-executive
Director on 6 May 2011 He was nominated to the
Board by Crystal Amber Fund, one of the Company’s
leading shareholders Richard is also founder and
Chief Executive of Eurovestech plc, the AIM lIisted
European technology fund Richard was named UK
Business Charity Champion by Third Sector in 2010
for raising £2 million for chartable causes

07 Lawrence Chnstensen CBE (68)

Non-executive Director

Lawrence Christensen was apponted as a Non-
executive Director on 1 November 2011 He has spent
30 years n the retaling industry, 25 of which have been
at Board level He was Group Operations Director at
Safeway plc and joned the Board of J Sainsbury plc

at the time ot the business turnaround, where he was
primarily involved in solving many of the operational
problems in both retall and supply chain operations

He was a Non-executive Director of Christian Salvesen
until its sale to Norbert Dentressangle and was previously
President of Freight Transport Association for four
years He currently acts as a Strategic Advisor and has
carnied out assignments with major businesses N the
UK and Australia, and has been appomnted Chairman

of the Remuneration Committee He 1s very involved
with the Royal British Legion and ther major fundraising
activites Lawrence was awarded a CBE in 1999

Note The Directors named atyove comprise all of the Directors of

JJB at the date of s report For detals of other Directors who served
during the penod under review, see tha Corporate Governance report
on page 16
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The current members of the four principal Committees
of the Board are as set out below

Audit Committee
David Adams {Commuttee Chairman)
Mike McTighe

Remuneration Committee

Lawrence Chnstensen {Committee Chairman)
David Adams

Matthew Pingent

Rrchard Bernstetn

Nominations Committee
Mike McTighe (Committee Chairman)
David Adams

CSR Committee

Richard Bernstein {Committee Chairmany)
Matthew Pinsent

Kerth Jones

Notes

> Richard Bemsten joined the Remuneration
Committee on 6 May 201

> The CSR Committee was formed on 6 May 2011

> Lawrence Chnistensen joined the Remuneration
Committee on 1 November 2011

> The terms of reference of these Commitiees are
summansed in the Corporate Governance report
an pages 15 to 21 and on JJB's corporate website,
www [|bcorporate co uk

> Dave Willams 18 secretary of each of these
Committees
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of JJB 1s fully committed to high standards of corporate governance This Report explains how the
Company has applied the pnnciples set out n the Combined Code on Corporate Governance published by the
Financial Reporting Council in June 2008 (“the Code") which applies to the Company in respect of the year under
review, and the extent to which it has complied with the detailed provisions of the Code A copy of the Code can
he found at www fre org uk/corporate/combinedeode ¢fm In May 2010 the Financial Reparting Council 1ssued a
new edition of the Code {called the UK Corporate Governance Code) which applies to financial years beginning on
or after 29 June 2010 Notwithstanding the Company’s move to the AIM market which occurred on 28 Apnl 2011,
it intends to continue to comply, to the extent that it 1s able, with the prowvisions of the Cade as it 1Is amended from
time to tme

Compliance

The Board considers that the Company, which was a “smaller comparny” (meaning a company outside of .
the FTSE 350 throughout the year immedately prior to the reporting penod) has comphed with the provisions

set out in Section 1 of the Code throughout the year under review

The Board currently compnses seven Directors the Non-executive Chairman, two Executive Directors and
four Non-executva Directars Their names, roles and hoef biographical detalls are provided on page 13

All of the Non-executive Directors, with the exception of the Chairman and Richard Bernsten, are considered by
the Board to be independent and have no cross-directorships or significant Iinks that could matenally interfere with
the exercise of their ndependent jJudgement A Charrman is not considered to be independent for the purposes

of the Code Richard Bernstein 1s not considered to be independent as he was appointed to the Board followng

a normination pursuant to a Relatonship Agreement entered nto between the Company and Crystal Amber Fund
Limited dated 21 November 2010 Harns Associates L P has a night to appoint a Director to the Board which they
have not exercised

With efiect from 1 October 2008, a Director has had a duty to avod a situation n which he has, or can have,
adirect or ndirect interest that conflicts, or possibly may conflict, with the interasts of the Company The Board
has adopted approprate processes to manage any such conflicts following the necessary amendments to the
Company's Articles of Association at the 2009 AGM

The Directors
Full details of all current Directors are set cut on pages 12 to 13 For details of other Directors who served during
the pencd under review, see page 16

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the Company’s shareholders in accordance
with the Articles of Association All new Directors apponted by the Board arerequired 1o be elected by
shareholders at the first AGM following therr appaintment Subsequently, at each AGM one-third of the Directers
{or, 1 thew number s not three or a muitiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one third)
must retire, but will be elignble for re-election Lawrence Christensen wilt be seeking election at the AGM and
David Adams and Matthew Pingent will be seeking re-electon The reasons why the Board believes that each

of these continuing Directors should remain n office will be set out In the explanatory notes to the Notice of AGM

The Company maintains hability Insurance for its Directors and Officers and the level of cover 1S reviewed annually

Performance evaluation

Owing to the number of significant events duning the year, nformal rather than formal Board performance

evaluation was conducted dunng the year under review Board performance evaluation will continue to be

conducted The extent to which this is formal or informal will be deterrmined by the Chairman and the Board

according to the avarlable rescurces and business needs !

How the Board operates

The Board 15 responsible for the direction, management and performance of the Company it determmes
corporate strategy and reviews both financial and pperational performance aganst forecasts The Board 1s the
decision-making body for all matters matenal to the Group in strategrc, financial and reputational terms The Board
has a formal schedule of matters specrically reserved to the Board for decision, nciuding approval of the financial
results, strategy and corporate objectives, significant transactions and matters affecting share capital The Board
delegates certain powers to a number of cormmittees wathin witten terms of reference
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How the Board operates (continued)

Full and timely access to all relevant information 1s provided to all Directors via comprehensive Board papers,
which are cwculated in good time ahead of Board meetings These nclude regular and up-to-date management
accounts, detaled trading information, and reports from Executive Directors and papers on major 1ssues for
decision by the Board

There 1s an established procedure whereby any Director may, in the furtherance of his duties, have access
to ndependent professional advice and services at the Group’s expense The Chairman ensures that Board
procedures are followsd and that the Board seeks independent advice whenever necessary

The Company Secretary, Dave Wiliams, 1s responsible for advising the Board on all governance matters and all
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and the Company's legal counsel
The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s a matter for the Board to decide The Comparny
Secretary acts as secretary io the Board and all of its principal cormmittees

All newly appointed Directors receive a tallored induction whean they join the Board or a Committee The continuing
professional development needs of each Director will be reviewed and, where appropnate, relevant traiming will be
made avallable

Board and Gommuttee meetings

The Board normally holds 10 scheduled Board meetings each year, but during the penod under review, owing to
the intense actmity required as a result of the events dunng the year, the Board met formally 21 times and on many
other occastons on a less formal basis

The following table shows the number of formal Board and Committee meetings held dunng the year and the
attendance record of the Indmidual Directors holding office during the period  The maximum number of meetings
a Director could attend as a Board/Committee member is shown in brackets

Board Audit Remuneration
of Directors Committee Committee
Number of meetngs 24 2 5
Current Directors
Wike Mchghe 21219 11{2) -
Keith Jones 21 (21) - -
Dave Wihams 21 {21) - -
David Adamns 19 (21) 2(2) 5(5)
Richard Bernsteint 2 (9 - 2(2)
Matthew Pinsent 14 (21) - 4(5)
Lawrence Chnstensen? 4 (&) - 0 {0}
Former Directors
Richard Mannming?® 15 (15) - -
Alan Benzig! 11 (15) 1 (1) 5(5)

Notes

1 Appointad to the Board and the Remuneration Committee on 6 May 2011

2 Appointed to the Board and the Remuneraton Committee on 1 November 2011
3 Resigned on 8 July 2011

4 Resigned on 8 July 2011

No meeting of the Nominatrons Committee was necessary dunng the accounting penod

There was no meeting of the CSR Committee dunng the accounting penod
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Board Committees

During the penod under review, the Board had established four prncipal Board Committees to which it has
delegated certam of its responsibilites Each operates within clearly defined terms of reference which are avalable
at www flbcorporate co uk These Committees are described below

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee met twice dunng the year The Committee was chaired by Alan Benzie until tus retrement
in July 2011 when he was replaced by David Adams The ather Cornmittee member 1s currently Mike McTighe
The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financiat Officer, senior executives and the Group's external auditors also
attend meetings of the Committee at the invitation of the Committee chairman

The Committee’s responsibiliies include

> Monitonng the integnty of the Group's Financial statements,

> Reviewing the effectivenass of the Group’s internal controls, nsk management systems and financial
reporting processes,

> Reviewing the independence and chjectivty of the external auditor, the services they prowde, and the scope
of their audit work and related fees, along with a review of therr reported findings, and

> Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, retirement and removal of the external auditor

Auditor independence

Deloitte LLP has reported to the Audit Committee that, in therr professional judgement, they are independent

and that the objectmvity of the audit partner and audit staff 1s nct impared The Audit Committee has reviewed

this Report and agrees with its conclusicn and 1s satisfied that Deloitte LLP has adequate policies and safeguards
in place to ensure that auditor objectmty and independence ts maintaned The Audit Committee I1s aware that
providing audit and non-audit advice could lead to a potential confict of interest The level of fees paid to Deloitte
LLP for non-audit services has been considered by the Audit Committee and is not perceived to be in conflict
with auditor indepandence In order to ensure the contnued independence and objectmty of the external auditor,
there 15 an established policy regarding the provision of non-audit services

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee met five imes during the year The Committee was charred by David Adams until

the appomntment of Lawrence Chnistensen as Chairman dunng February 2012 The other members in addition to
David Adams are currently Matthew Pinsent and Richard Bernstein Alan Benzie also served as a member of the
Commuttee untl us retirement in July

The Committee’s responsibilities include

> Determining the overall Group remuneration policy,

> Detarmining the indimdual remuneration packages of Executive Directors based on therr performance dunng
the year and ging guidance on remuneration packages for senior executives,

> Making incentive awards under the Company’s various incentive plans,

> Approving disclosures relating to executive remuneration in the Annual Report, and

> Agreeing the terms of service agreements for Executive Directors

Further details about Directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors' Remuneration report on pages 25 to 29

Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committee did not meet duning the year The Committee’s charrman is Mike McTighe and its
only other current member s David Adams Alan Benzie also served as a member of the Committee dunng the
year under review Two Non-executive Directors have joined during the year, but these appointments had been
largely agreed during the previcus accounting penod

The Committee’s responsibiities include

> Reviewing the structure, size and composttion of the Board,

> Making recommendations to the Board regarding any changes to the Board's composttion,
> ldentifying and nominating (for Board approval) candidates to fill any vacancies on the Board,
> Reviewing succession plans for both Executve and Non-executwve Directors, and

> Reviewing the membership of Board Committees
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Nominations Committee {(continued)

The process for appointing new Directors involves creating a short-list of potential candidates for any vacant
postion Usually, this 1s done by the Chairman of the Committee after discussions with a range of senior retail
trade executes and professional advisers External search consultants are engaged where appropriate These
candidates are then interviewed by the members of the Committee before the Committee makes the decision
who to nominate to the Board as therr preferred candidate for the vacant position

CSR Committee

Upon the appointment of Richard Bernstein as a Non-executive Director on 6 May 2011, the Board resolved to
constituts a CSR Committes to further the Company’s activities in the Community with a particular emphasis on
charttable issues The Committee currently comprises of Richard Bernstein as Chairman, Matthew Pinsent and
Keth Jones

The actwvities and terms of reference of this Committee include

> Ensuring that the Company's corporate social responsibility remains an integral part of the corporate strategy,

> Recognising the impact of the Group’s actvties on third parties and society n general, '
> Recormmending policies on all key areas of CSR,

> Monitorng compliance with the CSR policies including reviewing performance aganst agreed targets, and

> Identfying matenal risk areas and mitigating such risks

Internal Contrel and Risk Management

The Board has applied Code provision C 21 which requires that it should, at least annually, conduct a revigw of
the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls and should report to shareholders that they have done
s0 It also requires the review to cover all material controls, ncluding financial, operaticnal and compliance controls
and nsk management systems This process has been in place from the start of the year to the date of approval of
the Financial statements

Furthermore, Code provision G 3 5 states that the Audt Committee should monitor and review the effectiveness

of a company’s internal aucit actvties Where there is no internal audit function, the Committee should consider .
annually whether there 1s 2 need for an internal audit function and make a recommendation to the Board, and

the reasons for the absence of such a function should be explained in the relevant section of the Annual Report

The Company has an nternal audit function which 1s led by the Head of Audit and Risk Management The internal
control framework encompasses both financial and non-financial controls, the effectiveness of which 1s regularty
reviewed by the Board and by senior executives This framework forms an important part of the process of
embedding internal control and risk management into the operations of the Company's business

Any system of ntemal conitrol can only provide reasonable and net absolute assurance that all significant business
nsks will be fully mingated However, by ensunng that the system of intemal contral reflects the risk erwironment in

which the Group operates, the new systems should provide adequate assurance that the principal nsks facing the
Group are properly managed

Staff can resse concerns regarding any impropriety over financial reporting or other matters through a “whistie
blowing” policy The Board has recently taken steps to improve this process

It is the Board’s firm intention that the risk management processes and internal controls will be continuously
reviewed for effectiveness and assessed by them

The Board also takes into consideration any matters raised by the Audit Committee The Audit Committee will
continue to review N detal both the effectiveness and level of resources available within the Group to manage
nsk and monitor contral efficiency of the new internal audit function

The Company has continued to Identify weaknesses and nefficiencies e many of the Gompany's processes,
including particularly the buying and merchandising and supply chain functions These have been addressed
by the new Trading Director and improvements have started to show, although this 1s an area that will be closely
monitored as the Campany continues its focus on the process and people aspects of the identified areas

The control of working capital as well as costs and the management of cash has improved significantly dunng
the year
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Internal Control and Risk Management {continued)

Delortte LLP has been the external auditor since August 2002 The Audit Commitiee assesses and considers
the frequency of changing auditor based on tharr assessment of the audtt, and rotation of audit partner, the most
recent of which occurred i the previous accounting period No contractual obligatons exist which restrict the
Audit Committee’s choice of audrtor

Non-audit services in the penod predorminantly relats to work required as a result of Deloitte LLP's role as auditor,
or work more efficiently completed by the Growup's audttor Reporting accountants’ services include necessary
work retated to the Capital Rassings and CVA That work was best performed by the Group's auditor because of
thetr knowledgs of the Group

Alternative Investment Market (AIM)
During the period the Company's histing on the main market of the London Stock Exchange was cancelled and
Its shares were admitted to AIM on 28 Apnl 2011

Relations with sharehelders

The Group Is committed to mamtaning an active dizlogue wath its shareholders in order to buld a mutual
understancing of its objectives and this 1s particularly so following the First and the Second Firm Placing and
Placing and Open Offer and the appointment to the Board of Richard Bernstein, the four largest shareholders in
the Company now hold approximately 89 per cent of the 1ssued shares m the Company and the Board ensures
that it continues to commurmcate with them regularly The Board invites institutional shareholders and analysts to
briefings after the announcemeant of the Company's ntenm and annual results There is also regular dialogue with
indidual Institutional nvestors, fund managers and analysts The Senior Independent Non-executive Director Is
avalable to act as a condurt to the Board for communication of shareholder concerns when other channels of
communication are inappropnate

The Board has drect communication with prvate sharehclders, particularly through publication of the intenm
and annual results

The AGM Is used as an opportunity to gather the views of shareholders and to answer the guestions of

both private and nstitutional Investors on all 1issues relevant to the Group Save in exceptional circumstances,
all Directors attend the Company’s AGM and the charrmen of the Board's Audit, Remuneration, Nominations
and CSR Committess are usually avallable to answer shareholders’ questions regarding the activities of
those Committees

The Group's corporate website, www jbcorporate ¢o uk, also Includes an area dedicated to corporate information,
including annual and intenm reports, press releases, share pnice histones, Group news and certain Group
policy documents

Going concem

In determining the apprapnate basis of preparation of the Annual Report, the Directors are required to consider
whether the Group can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, that s for at least 12 months
from the date of sigring of this report After making enquines, and considering the matters which are described
in this Annual Report, the Directors have concluded that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group

and the Company will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
However, the Directors have concluded that there are matenal uncertainties facing the business

Dunng 2011, the Group successfully completed a number of key steps to refinance the business and reduce

the cost base through a Company Voluntary Arrangement These steps were fully disclosed i our 2011 Annual
Report During the year, the Group also commenced to Implement its turnaround programme and has disclosed
key elements of its progress m the Chief Executive’s review on pages 3 to 8

The Group continuss to make prograss with its turnaround programme and on 20 February 2012 announced

that cash margins were improving and that the second half performance was stronger than the first half However,
progress has not been as rapid as onginally envisaged and whilst trading remains challenging, in order to expedite
the turnaround and take advantage of the epportunities presented by the key trading pencds of the UEFA Euro
Championstips and the London 2012 Olympics, the Group has sought and agreed the terms of a strategic
investment from Dick’s, a new strategic partner, and also agreed a package of further support from the Group's
other key investors and stakeholders
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Going concern (continued)

The Board decided 1o accept a strategic investment from Dick's as, in addition to the significant capital resources
to be provided, the Board 1s of the view that the introduction of Dick’s as a strategic partner will enable the
Company to draw upen Dick’s valuable experignce in the sports retal market, which, in turn, will assist
management in accelerating the Group's revised business plan Dick’s 1s an authentic full-ine sporting goods
retaller based in the USA, offering a broad assortment of brand name sporting goods equipment, apparel and
footwear m a specialty store environment

The Company intends to raise £30 milion (before expenses) in aggregate by way of the exercise of 2011 Warrants
and the 1ssue of the Subseription Shares and the First Convertible Loan Notes, condricnal, among other things,
upon the passing of the Subscrption Resolutions at the General Meeting

The Company’s four largest shareholders, and Dick’s, have entered into a Subscription Agreement with the

Company pursuant to which

> The four largest shareholders have agreed to exercise 2011 Warrants resulting in the issue of 22,712,804 Warrant
Shares at an exercise price of 10 pence per share,

> The four largest shareholders and Dick’s have agreed to subscribe for a total of 89,787,108 Subscription Shares
at 10 pence per share, and

> Dick’s has agreed to subscribe for the First Convertible Loan Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
£18 75 milhon and has been granted the nght {but does not have the obligaticn) to subscribe for the Second
Convertible Loan Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to £20 millon, in each case subject to theterms
and conditions set out in the Convertible Loan Note Instrument

On 4 Aprl 2012, the Board also announced that it had reached agreement with BoS, the Company’s lender,
regarding the continued provision of the BoS Facility through 1o 31 May 2015, an agreement with adidas Group,
one of the Company’s key supplier partners, for the provision of aloan of up to £15 million (of which £8 4 milkon
will be avalable for drawdown in the first year following the successful £30 million fundraising) and the terms of an
intercreditor arrangement with BoS, Dick’s and adidas Group, each agreement subject to completion of the
Subscription and the satisfaction of certain other conditions precedent

The strategic Investment and financing package will not address the medium term financing requirements of the
Group and accordingly the Company currently believes that it will require additional funding in the first quarter of
2013 Whilst this additional funding 1s not committed, the further round of funding 15 expected to be provided through
> the subscnption by Dick’s for the Second Convertible Loan Notes in the aggregate principal amount
of £20 million (that Dick’s has the nght (but not the obligation) to subscnbe for under the terms of the
Subscription Agreement),
> afurther share offering of new Ordinary Shares, to the extent permitted by law and regulation, to all of the
Company’s shareholders to raise the aggregate sum of £5 million, and
> the continued support of BoS and the second tranche of the lean from adidas Group, amounting to £6 6 million,
being made avallable for drawdown by the Company

Shareholder approval will be required for the issue of the vanous securties and to obtan approval from the
Takeover Panel for the level of Dick’s future holdings (being up to a maximum of 61 per cent of the Company's
voting share capital) The shareholder vote to approve this transaction will take place on 26 April 2012 If the
shareholder vote 15 not passed by Shareholders at the General Meeting and the transaction does not proceed,
the Company will be in default of the current BoS Facility and the Amended BeS Facility and the adidas Loan
Agreement will not become effective In these circumstances, and in the absence of any other funding proposal
given the lImited headroom in the Group's short term cash flow forecasts, the Directors would be fikely to conduct
aformal sale process for the Company However, if a purchaser cannot be found for the Cempany under the
formal sale process, the Directors believe that the Company will not be able to continue to trade as a going
concern which would result m the appointment of recewvers, lquidators or administrators

If the transaction 1s approved, the Directors are confident that this package of support will provide the Group with
a solid platform from which to deliver growth over the key trading pencds of the UEFA Euro Championships and
the London 2012 Olympics However our view remains that the UK retal market continues to be extremely
challenging and 1s Iikely to remain so for some time
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Going concemn {continued)
As part of therr going concermn assessment, the Directors have reviewed trading and cash flow {orecasts which
take Into consideration the uncertanties m the current operating envirconment The Directors have now concluded
that thera are matenal uncertanties surrounding going concern These matenal uncertanties are
> secuning the pre-requisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions,
> the ahility of the Group to continue to Implement its business recovery tumaround strategy in ight of
— the current macrosconomic environment and its impact on consumer cenfidence and the UK retal sector
this uncertain and volatile outlook i the UK economy results in dificutiies in forecasting sales perfermance
in the short and medium term, and
—the Group’s current stock profile which has been affected by management's control of cash and available
resources with the result that the Group’s Intake, availabiity, stock holding and profile of stock continue
1o be substantially lower than it should be
Both of these factors are cntical to the achievability of the Group's business pfan, which will be a vital factor in
maintaining sufficient hsadroom on cash and covenants, but alse an mportant factor n determining the timing
of the additional funding expected to be required In the first quarter of 2013, and
> if the pre-requisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions s not secured, secunng ongaing support from
Bo3 to continue to trade whilst alternative support 1s sought

The Group's short-term cash flow forecasts indicate that the Group will not experience a funding shortfall before
the expected date of receipt of the net proceeds of the Subscription on or around 27 Apnl 2012 However, the
headroom available to the Company in the penod teading up to 27 Apnl 2012 1s very Imited and management
must continue to carefully control ts cash and available resources dunng this penod

Based on the commercial basis of this transaction which Is to the benefit of the shareholders, the Directors have
no reason to believe that the vote will not proceed with a majonty Having regard to the factors set out in this going
concern assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that, should the investment proceed, the Group
will be In a pasition 1o deliver its turnaround strategy

The Directors have identified a number of management intiatives that the busness could pursue and which they
are confident it can achieve to help offset a potential decling In trading including

> further cost reductions in addiion to the current cost reduction programme,

> an improvement n its stockholding and/or extending terms with suppliers,

> management of capital expenditure, and

> the disposal of certain stores or operating unrts

The Drrectors have concluded that the combination of the circumstances set out above reprassnts a matenal
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore the Company and Group may be unable to continue to realise assets and discharge
labiities In the normal course of business However, given the strategc investment and financing package that the
Company Is announcing today, the Board has concluded that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
and the Company will have adequate resources to continue In operatonal exsstence for the foreseeable future

For these reasons, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Annual Report and Financial
statements Tius Annual Report does not include any adjustments that would result from the going concern

basis of preparation being inappropnate

Mike McTighe
Charman
4 Aprl 2012




22 JJB Sports plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Governance
Directors’ report

Annual Report
The Directors of JUB Sports plc present ther Annual Report on the affarrs of the Group, together with the Financial
statements and auditors’ report for the 52 week penod ended 29 January 2012

Pnncipal activities
JJB Sports 15 a mutli-channel sports retaller supplying branded sports and lewsure clothing, footwear and
accessones Full detalls of the Group's activites can be found In the Chuef Exacutive'’s review on pages 3108

Business review

The Company 15 required by the Companies Act to Include an Business review In this report The requisite
information 1s Included In the following sections, which are deemed to be ncorporated into this report by reference
> Chairman’s statement on pages 110 2,

> Chief Executive’s review on pages 3 to 8,

> Corporate Governance report on pages 15to 21, and

> Directors' Remuneration report on pages 2510 29

Events after the penod end
Details of mportant events affecting the Company occurring since the period end are set out In note 42 of the
Notes to the Financial statements

Results and dwvidends

Group losses from continuing operations after taxation and after exceptional tems were £1011 milkon

(2011 loss £181 4 millon) Losses from continuing operations before exceptional tems were £56 2 millon
(2011 loss £73 9 milkon) No mtenm dividend was paid dunng the perod and the Directors cannot recommend
a final dvidend for the penod (2011 nil)

Financial instruments

Information an the Company's use of financial Instruments, its financial sk management objectives and policies
and the exposure of the Company to price risk, credit sk, iquidity risk and cash flow nsk s provided In the
Chief Executive's review on pages 3 to 8 and in note 39 of the Notes to the Financial statements

Share capital structure

Detalls of the issued share capnal, together with details of the movements in the Company’s 1ssued share capital
dunng the year, are shown in note 26 of the Notes to the Financial statements The Company has two classes

of share, Ordinary Shares and Defarred Shares The Crdinary Shares carry no nght to fixed income and each
Ordinary Share carnes the nght to one vote at general meetings of the Company The Deferred Shares carry

no nghts

The Company has issued Warrants to subscrbe for Ordinary Shares Details are in note 26 of the Notes to the
Financial statements

There are no specific restnictions on the size of a holding or on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by
the general provisions of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation The Directors are not aware of any
agreements between holders of the Company’s shares that may result in restnctions on the transfer of secunties
or on voting nghts No person has any special nghts of control over the Company’s share capital

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 27 of the Notes to the Financial statements and in the
Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 25 to 28 The provisions of the Company’s share schemes and plans
may cause options and awards granted under such schemes and plans to vest on a takeover
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Directors’ powers

Subject to any statutory prowisions and the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Articles

> enable the Directors to exercise all the powers of the Company,

> allow the Drrectors to delegate any of their powers, authonties and discretions to any Executive Director
and to delegate any of ther powers or discretions to committees consisting of one or more Directors,

> authonse the Company to purchase all or any of its own shares {subject to certain restrictions), and

> authonse the Directars 1o allot unissued sharas or to grant options or nghts of subscnption or conversion
over unissued shares

Directors

The names, roles and brief blographical details of the current Directors are set out on page 13 The hames
of other Directors who served during the year together with full details of Board changes are contained in the
Corporate Governance report on pages 15 to 21

With regard to the appointment and replacement of Directors, the Company 1s governed by its Articles of
Association, the Code, the Companies Acts and related legislation The Articles themselves may be amended
by special resolution of the shareholders at a general meeting

The interests of the Directors n the Ordinary Shares of the Company at the penod end (together with details
of any subsequent changes) are set out In the Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 25 to 29

Contracts

The Group confirms that there are no persons with whom the Group has contractual or other arrangements
which the Group considers are essential to its business Furthermore, there are no significant agreements to
which the Group 15 a party that 1ake effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company following
a takeover bid

Substantial Shareholders

At the date of this report the Company has been notified, In accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules as they relate to companies listed on the AIM Market, of the following interests in the voting nghts attached
1o the Company’s Ordinary Shares

Number of Interest in

shares in 1ssued

which thera s share

an interest Capital (%)

Invesco Asset Management Limited 138,839,516 4734
Harris Assoclates L P 86,527,225 29 50
Crystal Amber Fund Limited 20,888,701 712
Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation Trust 14,622,722 499

Chantable and political donations

Charrtable donations of £10,037 (2011 £7,530) were made by the Group dunng the year Detalls are given in the
Corporate responstbility report on pages 9 to 11 No political donations or contnbutions were made durning the
current or previous accounting period

Supplier payment policy

The Group’s policy for the payment of suppliers s to agree terms of payment with suppliers at the time when
orders are placed Payment 1s then made in accordance with the agreed terms At 29 January 2012, the number
of days' purchases Included in the amounts owing to trade creditors in the Group and Company was 51 days
{2011 76 days), based on the ratio of trade creditors at the end of the accounting pencd to the amounts invoiced
dunng the accounting penod to trade creditors
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Statement as to disclosure of iInformation to Auditor

Pursuant to section 418 of the Comparnies Act 2008, each Director of the Company canfirms that (a) so far as

he Is aware, there 15 no relevant audrt information of which the Company's auditor 1 unawara, and (b) that he has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information For these purposes, relevant
audtt information means information needed by the Company's auditor in connection with preparng their report
set out on pages 31 to 32

Annual General Meeting
Details of the Company's AGM to be held in 2012 are set out in the Notice of AGM being sent to shareholders,
a copy of which will be available on the Company's website

By Order of the Board

Dave éﬂlW

Company Secretary
4 April 2012
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Introduction

As an AlM listed company, the Company 1s not required to comply with Schedule 8 of the Companies Act,
however in accordance with AIM Notice 36 has provided, on page 27, the necessary disclosure of Directors’
remuneration eamed in respect of the financial year by each Director of the Company acting in such capacity
during the financial year The Directors also feel it 1s appropnate to provide the following information to shareholders

The Remuneration Committee

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are summarnsed in the Corporate Governance report
on pages 15 to 21 The names of the current members of the Remuneration Committee and the changes to
membership made dunng the year are set out under ‘Board Committees’ on page 14

No Drrector participates in the determination of his own remuneration package

No performance-related bonuses were paid to any current Executive Directors in respect of the 52 week penod
ending 29 January 2012, although bonuses from prior years were paid {as disclosed on page 27)

Unaudited infermation

2006 Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")

The 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan provides for the grant of awards over Ordinary Shares as nit price options
or awards of restricted shares Awards granted under the plan will normally vest on the thwd anniversary of the
date of grant provided that the performance target specified at the time of the award has been satisfied and
that the Remuneration Committee 1s satisfied that the undertying performance of the Group justifies the release
of shares Awards may be released in certain geod leaver circumstances on the normal vesting date but subject
to pro-rating for the penod the award has been held and to the extent that the performance target 1s achieved
The Remuneration Committee may determine that awards shall be released early In certan cther leaver
crrcumstances Awards may also be released early upon a change of control or reconstruction of the Company
subject to satisfaction of the performance target and the Remunerabon Commitiee being satisfied that the
underlying parformance of the Group justfies the release of the Ordinary Shares

Sersor Executive Incentive Plan (“EIP”)
Following the Capital Rausings, CVA and transfer to the Alternative Investrment Market (“AIM”) carned out dunng
the 62 week period ended 29 January 2012, a new equity ncentive plan was implemented

The key terms of the plan, as proposed by the Remuneration Committee and passed at a General Meeting on

21 September 2011, are as follows

> Share awards will be granted to members of the Company’s leadership team compnsing the key executives and
selected sermor exacutives compnsing members of the operating board, together with Mike McTighe and David
Adams, both of whom are Non-exscutive Directors and have played a matenal part in the recent Capital Raisings
and restructuring In addition, they will play a major role in the success of the turnaround plan going forwards
The existing award to Keith Jones under the 2006 LTIP will be surrendered,

> Ordinarily, no shares will vest unless the Company's market capitalisation after five years 1s £123 16 milhon
This represents the amount of new capital raised in the two Capital Raisings (£96 5 millon) increased by
5 per cent per annum (the hurdie rate),

> Vasting occurs on the fifth anniversary of the date on which the Company's shares were admitted to trading on AlM,

> Howaever, full vesting may occur earlier if the Company's market capitalisation reaches £193 milion for a perod of
80 consecutive dealing days,

> Ordinanly, participants must wait for 12 months following vesting before they may realise any value from ther
awards and have until the seventh anruversary of the date the Company’s shares were admitted to trading on AlM,

> The plan will aliocate to participants up to 20 per cent of the growth n market capitalisation beyond the new
capital raised, increased by the hurdle rate up to the pant of vesting,

> There 1s an upper mit on the number of shares that may be 1ssued or transferred to satisfy awards under the
EIP of 15 per cent of Company's current 1ssued Ordinary Share capital, and

> The plan wil contan hmited vesting provisions for participants who leave in certain specified crcumstances

> Other leavers will forfett their nghts
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Senior Executive Incentive Plan (“EIP”) {(continued)

As at today's date, no awards had been granted to the participants but it was intended that all awards would be
made by 31 December 2012, or later where thare was an exceptional need to recruit an individual nte a key
position identified by the Board, n consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The exceptional awards were designed to Incentivise members of the executive team to achieve a percentage
growth of total sharehokier return (TSRY), defined as share price plus dividends reinvested from the day of
entittement (ex dividend day), over a three year performance penod

As part of the strategic investment and financing package, the Gompany has announced today that the Board has
resolved it would be Inappropriate to grant any awards under the EIP

Pensions

Certam of the Executive Directors who served during the year chose to make contnbutions to thetrr own personal
pension schemes and the Company contributed an amount into those schemes Other Directors chose to have
an equivalent sum paid n cash Others chose a combination Detalls are set out in the table on page 27

Taxable Benefits

Executive Directors are eligible for taxable benefits, which include

> Membership of a private medical scheme, and

> The prowision of a company car {with running costs, Including private mileage) or the payment of an annual car
allowance in equal monthly nstalments

Where a Director has been recruted on the basis that his home 1s beyond daily traveling distance to the
Company’s Retal Support Centre In Wigan, trave! costs to and from home to the Retall Support Centre and
accommodation and subsistence costs whilst n Wigan, are payable by the Company
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Detaills of ndmdual Directors’ remuneration for the accounting pernod are as follows

£ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Basic salary/ Car £'000 Taxable Pension Termination 2012 201
fees  allowance Bonus benefils' contnbutions payments Total Total
Executive Directors
Keith Jones 375 20 - 1 94 - 490 620
Dave Willarms 200 20 - 1 3 - 252 10
Executive Directors leaving the Board during the year
Richard Manning 88 9 - 1 36 3032 437 251
Non-executive Directors
Mike McTighe
(Chairman} 150 - - - - - 150 16
David Adams 60 - - - - - 60 52
Richard Bernstein® 30 - — - - - a0 -
Lawrence
Chnistensen? 10 - - - - - 10 -
Matthew Pinsent 40 - — - - - 40 40
Non-executive Directors leaving the Board dunng the year
Alan Benzie 20 - - - - - 20 45
Total 2012 973 49 - 3 161 303 1,489 1,034
Notes

1 The taxable benefits receved by each of the Executive Directors are detalled on page 26
2 This includes a prior year performance bonus pard during March 2011

3 Richard Bernstein was apponted on 6 May 2011 The fees are paid to Crystal Amber of which he 15 a representative

4 Lawrence Chnstensen was appointed on 1 November 2011
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Directors’ interests

A Share Options and Share Awards

Directors’ beneficial interests in the Company’s share aption and award schemes at the beginning and end of the
accounting penod (or on appontment If later) were as follows

Number of 1p Ordinary Shares

As at Granted Lapsed As at Exe;?:fszg Date from

Executive Directors 29 January dunng dunng  30January per share which Exercise
at perod end Scheme 2012 penod penod 2011 (pence) exercisable exprry date
Keith Jones 2006 LTIP 750,000 - - 750,000 - 0206813 Q10620
Dave Willams 2006 LTIP - - - - -

Total 750,000 — - 750,000 —

Exacutive Directors leaving or changing status duning the year

Richard Manning 2006 LTIP - - (592,256) 592,256 - 051112 041119
Total - - (592,256) 592,256 -

Grand total 750,000 - (592,256) 1,342,256 -

Note Number of Ordinary Shares adjusted in all cases to take account of the Capital Reorganisation
The perfarmance condions attached to awards under the 2006 LTIP are described on pages 25 to 26

The penod over which the performance conditions attached 1o awards to Keith Jonss under the 2006 LTIP 13
measured is from 2 June 2010 to 2 June 2013

The key terms and detalls of the grants under the new Executive Incentive Plan were set out in the circular dated
5 September 2011 No grants had been made under the plan as at the penod end Participation in the EIP would
have excluded participants from holding or recetving awards under any of the other long-term tncentive plans The
Remuneration Committee will reconsider incentive plans in due course

No opttons or awards were exercised dunng the accounting perod or between the end of the accounting perod
and the date of this report

A third invitatton to apply for shares under the Group Sharesave plan was made n November 2010, and the
scheme commenced on 1 February 2011 Of the current Directors, Kerth Jones had applied for options of
11,583 shares (after the Capital Reorganisation) and had cancelled all previous Sharesave options held
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of the accounting penod (or date of appomtment if later) and at the end of the accounting period are set out below

29 January 2012
Number of ordinary shares

Directors at the pericd end Beneficial Nen-beneficial

30 January 2011
Number of ordinary shares

Bereficial Non-beneficial

David Adams 10,000 - 10,000 -
Richard Bernstein™ — 172,363,878 - —
Lawrence Christensen - - — —
Keith Jones 71,000 - 71,000 -
Mike McTighe 40,000 - 40,000 —
Matthew Pinsent - - - -
Dave Willams - - - -
Total 121,000 172,363,878 121,000 —

Note Number of Ordinary Shares adjusted to take account of the Caprital Reorganisation

* Aichard Bernstein 1s interested n the Ordinary Shares and the Warrants to subscnbe for Ordinary Shares held by Crystal Amber Fund Limuted

and by Invesco Asset Management Limited

There have been no changes In the currently serving Directors’ interests since the end of the accounting penod

and the date of this report

On kehalf of Board

Lawrence Christensen
Charrman of the Remuneration Committee
4 Apnl 2012
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The Drrectors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the Fnancial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Cormpany law requires the Directors to prepare Financial statemenits for each financial year Under that law

the Directors are required to prepare the Group Financial statements in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and have also chosen to prepare the Parent

Company Financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by the EJ Under company law the Directors must

not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod In prepanng these Financial statements,

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Drectors

> Properly select and apply accounting policies,

> Present information, ncluding accounting policies, n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable informatron,

> Provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance, and

> Make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accolinting records that are sufficient to show and explan the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial postition of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the Financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other iregularties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website Legislatton in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
Financial staternents may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Responsibility statement

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

> The Financial statements, prepared n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, give a true
and far view of the assets, labilties, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

> The management report, which 1s ncorporated mnto the Directors' report, includes a farr review of the develapment
and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descrption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

By order of ard
Keith Jo Dave Wilkams

Chief Executive Officer Cheef Financral Officer
4 Apnl 2012 4 Apnl 2012
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Financial statements
Independent auditor’s report
to the members of JJB Sports plc

For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

We have audited the Financial statements of JJB Sports plc for the penod ended 29 January 2012 which compnse
the Consolidated statement of financial performance, the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the Consolidated statement of financial posttion, the Consoldated
statement of cash flow, the Company statement of financial position, the Company statement of cash flow, the
Statement of accounting policies and the related notes 1 to 42 The financial reporting framework that has been
applied n their preparation 1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company Financial staterments, as apphed in accordance with
the provisions of the Comparies Act 2006

This Report Is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’'s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assurme responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members as a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibiiities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully In the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Qur responsibility
is to audit and express an opirion on the Financial statements n accordance with apphcable law and Internaticnal
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the Financial statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by
fraud or error This ncludes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are approprate to the Group’s and
the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the
Financial statements In addion, we read ali the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to
identfy matenal nconsistencies with the audted Financial statements If we become awara of any apparent
material misstatements or Inconsistencies we consider the mplcations for our report

Opinion on Financial statements

In our opinion

> the Financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs
as at 29 January 2012 and of the Group’s loss for the penod then ended,

> the Group Financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

> the Parent Company Financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the prowvisions of the Comparues Act 2006, and

- the Financial stataments have been prepared In accordance with the requrements of the Companies Act 2006

Emphasis of matter — Going concem
In forming our opirion on the Financial statemeants, which 1s not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in the Statement of accounting policies on pages 40 to 42 of the Financial statements concerming
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern This disclosure includes the following matenal uncertainties
> securing the pre-requisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions,
> the ability of the Group to continue to Implerment its business recovery tumaround strategy in light of
— the current macroeconomic environment and its impact on cansumer cenfidence and the UK retall sector,
this uncertain and volatile outlook n the UK economy results in difficulties in forecasting sales performance
in the short and medium term, and
— the Group's current stock profile which has been affected by management’s control of costs and avallable
resources with the result that the Group's Intake, availabilty, stock holding and profile of stock continue to be
substantially lower than it should be
Both of these factors are critical to the achieveabilty of the Group’s business plan, which will be a wital factor in
mantaining sufficient headroom on cash and covenants, but also an important factor I determining the timing
of the additional funding expected to be required In the first quarter of 2013
= If the pre-requisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions 1s not secured, securing ongomng support from
BoS to continue to trade whilst alternative support 1s sought
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Financial statements
Independent auditor’s report
to the members of JJUB SpOI'tS plC continued

For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

These conditions, along with the other matters explained m basts of preparation note to the Financial statements,
Indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast signficant doubt about the Company's abiity to
continue as a going concern The Financial statements do not include the adustments that would result if the
Company was unable to continue as a going concemn

Opmnion on other matter prescrnibed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the Informaticn given N the Directors” Report for the financial year for which the Financial statements
are prepared 1s consistent with the Financial staternents

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you If, n our opinion

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recened from branches not visited by us, or

> the Parent Comparny Financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

> certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

>we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire for our audrt

Other matters

In our opirion the part of the Drrectors” Remuneration Report to be audted has been praperly prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 that would have applied were the Company
a quoted company

Although not required fo do so, the Directors have voluntarly chosen to make a Corporate Governance statement

detailing the extent of thewr comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code We reviewed

> the Directors’ statement, contained within the Corporate Governance statement, in relation to going concern,

> the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's comphance with the nine provisions
of the UK Corpoerate Governance Code specified for our review, and

> certan glementgmf the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors’ remuneration
Sharon Fr;r,ﬁs’e:c: statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Manchester, United Kingdom

4 Aprl 2012
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Financial statements
Consolidated statement of financial
performance
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012
52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January
2012 201
Total Total
Notes £°000 £ 000
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 284,206 362,804
Cost of sales (182,722) (238,020)
Gross profit 101,484 124,874
Other operating income 3 2,682 1,848
Distribution expensas (16,732) (20,810)
Administration expenses (21,800) {24,075)
Selling expenses (169,084) (263,649)
Operating loss (103,450) (181,812)
Adjusted operating loss (56,242) (73.856)
Exceptional items - goodwill impairment - {92,610)
- other exceptional items 5 {47,208) {15,346)
Operating loss {103,450) (181,812)
Investment Income 3] 113 512
Finance costs 9 (566) (1,162)
Finance costs are stated after charging
Excephonal bank arrangement fees and charges 9 - {100)
Farr value adjustments to dervative instruments 3,048 1,919
Debt issue costs (274) (822)
Loss before taxation 6 (101,129) (181,365)
Taxation 10 - -
Loss after taxation for the penod attrnibutable
to equity holders of the Parent Company {101,129)  (181,365)
Loss per share 13
From continuwng operations
Basic loss per Ordinary Share* Pence (4G 40) (72 45)
Diluted loss per Ordinary Share* Pence (39 00) (72 45}

* The prior year figures for Basic and Diluted loss per Ordinary Share have been represented to take into consideration the capital raises

which occurred in the current perrod  See nota 13 for further details on the retrospective adjustment to loss per Ordinary Share
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FHnancial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive

income
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

52weeks to 52 weeks to

29 January 30 January

2012 201

£000 £ 000

Loss after taxation for the period (101,129) {181,385)
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations (126) (662)
Other comprehensive income for the period (126) (662)
Total comprehensive Income for the penod {101,255} {182,027)
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012
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Share Forexgn
Shara Capital based currency
Shara premium  redemption Own payment translahon Retained Total
capital account raserve shares reserve reserve earnngs equity
£000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 31 January 2010 32,642 174,055 1,069 (3.083) 448 {41) 18,663 223,583
Loss for the penod - - - - — ~ [(181,365) (1B1,365)
Exchange differences
on translation of
foremgn operations - - - - - (662) - {662)
Total comprehensive
income for the penod - - - - - (662) (181,365) (182,027)
Credt to equity for equity-
settled share based payment — - - - 2545 - - 2,545
At 30 January 2011 32,542 174,055 1,069 (3.083) 2993 (703) (162,802) 44,071
Lass far the pericd - - — - - - (101129) (101,i28)
Exchange differences
on transtabon of
foresgn operations — - — - - {126) - {126}
Total comprehensive
income for the pernod - - — - - {126) (101,329) (101,255)
Credit to equity for equity-
settled share based payment - - — - 1710 - - 1,710
Firm Placing and Placing
and Open Offers 2,267 83942 - - — - - 86,209
Exercise of warrants 15 224 — - — — - 239
At 29 January 2012 34,824 258,221 1,069 (3,083) 4,703 (829) (263,931) 30,974
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 29 January 2012

As at As at
29 January 30 January
2012 2011
Notes £°000 £1000
Non-current assets
Goodwill 14 13,796 13,796
Other intangible assets 15 10,405 20,175
Property, plant and eguipment 16 46,091 64,859
70,292 98,830
Current assets
tnventories 13 47,302 52,725
Trade and other recevables 19 7,792 9,077
Cash and cash equivalents 20 4,638 5,859
59,732 67,661
Total assets 130,024 166,491
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 (45,689) (68,384)
Provisions 23 {6,488) (6,636)
Dervative financial instruments 39 (958) (113)
{53,135) (75,133)
Net current assets (hiabilities) 6,597 (7.472)
Non-current habilihes
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 (15,915) (24,678)
Deferred lease incentives 25 (10,292) (11,733)
Provisions 23 (19,708) (10,876)
(45,915) (47,287)
Total habilities (99,050} (122,420)
Net assets 30,974 44,071
Equity
Share capital 26 34,824 32,5642
Share premium account 28 258,221 174,065
Capital redemption reserve 29 1,069 1,069
Investment in own shares 30 (3,083) {3,083)
Share based payment reserve 3 4,703 2,993
Foreign currency translation reserve 32 (829) (703)
Retained losses 33 (263,931) (162,802)
Total equity 30,974 44,071

The Financial statements of LB Sports pls, Company no 1024895, were approved by the Board of Directors and
on its behalf by

authonised for 1ssue on 4 April 2012 They were sian

K Jones Chief Executive Cfficer
D Wilhams Chief Financial Officer




37 JJB Sports plc Annugl Report and Accounts 2012 Overview

Bustness review

Governance

Financial statements &

Corporate nformaton

Financial statements

Consolidated statement of cash flow

For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January
2012 2011
Notes £'000 £ 000
Net cash outflow from operating activities 35 {78,570) {71,895)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 113 512
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 18 155
Purchase of Intangible assets 15 (972) (1,100)
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment 18 (2,862) (4,089)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,703) {4,622)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest pad (545) (946)
Proceeds from issues of share capital 90,102 —
Exercise of warrants 239 -
Drawdown of current asset investment - 168,117
Settlement of loan notes - (168,117)
Net proceeds from bank loans and bank overdrafts 16,216 25,000
Repayment of bank loan {25,000} -
Net cash from financing activities 81,012 24,054
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {1,261) (52,363)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,859 £8,812
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 40 (590)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 20 4,638 5,859
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Financial statements

Company statement of financial position

As at 29 January 2012

As at As at
29 January 30 January
2012 2011
Notes £'000 £ 000
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets 15 10,405 20175
Property, plant and equipment 16 40,225 50,765
Investments in subsidiaries 17 20,894 20,894
71,524 91,834
Current assets
Inventories 18 38,727 45,204
Trade and other receivables 19 14,753 12,426
Cash and cash equivalents 20 2,894 735
56,374 58,365
Total assels 127,898 150,198
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 21 (177,139) (213419}
Provisions 23 {4,211) (3,919)
Denvative financial Instruments 39 (958) (113}
(182,308) (217,451)
Net current habilities (125,934) (159,086}
Non-current habiitias
Bank loans and overdrafts 22 {15,915) (24,678}
Deferred lease incentives 25 (8,429) (9,629)
Provisions 23 {13,593) (6,837)
(37,937) (41,244}
Total abilittes {220,245) (258,695)
Net habilites (92,347)  (108,496)
Equity
Share capital 26 34,824 32,542
Share premium account 28 258,221 174,055
Capital redernphion reserve 29 1,069 1,069
Investment In own shares 30 {3,083) (3,083)
Share based payment reserve 31 4,703 2,893
Retained losses 33 (388,081) (316,072)
Total equity (92,347)  (108,486)

The Financial statements of JJB Sports plc, Company no 1024835, were approved by the Board of Directors

and authorised for 1Issue on 4 Apnl 2012 They were sighed on its behalf by

K Jones Chief Exacutive Officer
D Wilhams Chief Financial Officer
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52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011

Notes £'000 £ 000
Net cash outflow from operating activities 35 (75,472) {70,407)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 108 502
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 10 155
Purchase of ntangible assets 15 {972) {1,100)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 16 (2,527) (2,350)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,381) {2,793)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (545) {946)
Proceeds from 1ssues of share capital 90,102 -
Exercise of warrants 239 -
Drawdown of current asset investment - 168,117
Settlement of loan notes - (168,117)
Net proceeds from bank loans and bank overdrafis 16,216 25,000
Repayment of bank loan (25,000) —
Net cash from financing activities 81,012 24,054
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,159 (49,146)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peniocd 735 48,881
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 20 2,894 735




40 JJB Sports plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Financial statements

Statement of accounting policies
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

Accounting penod
Every accounting period ends on the Sunday which falls before, but closest to 31 January, resulting n accounting
perods of either 52 or 53 weeks

Adoption of new and revised Standards
At the date of authonisation of the Financial statements the following standards and interpretations which have
not been applied in these Financial statements, were in 1ssuUg but not yet effective

IFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets - Amendmeant

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 10  Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entites

IFRS 13  Far Value Measurement

1AS 1 (amended) Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive Income
IAS 12 {amended) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

1AS 19 {revised) Employee Benefits

1AS 27 {rewised) Separate Financial Statements

1AS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Vertures

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards and nterpretations in future penods will have
no material iImpact on the Financial statements of the Group

Basis of preparation

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group Financial statements comply with Article 4
of the EU 1AS Regulation

The Financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial
nstruments The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

Going concern

In determining the appropriate basis of preparaticn of the Annual Report, the Directors are required to consider
whether the Group can continue In operaticnal existence for the foreseeable future, that 1s for at least 12 montbs
from the date of signing of this Report After making enquines, and considenng the matters which are descnbed
inthis Annual Report, the Directors have concluded that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group

and the Company will have adequate resources to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future
However, the Directors have concluded that there are matenal uncertanties facing the business

During 2011, the Group successiully completed a number of key steps to refinance the business and reduce

the cost base through a Company Voluntary Arrangement These steps were fully disclosed 1in our 2011 Annual
Report During the year, the Group also commenced to iImplement its turnaround programme and has disclosed
key elements of s progress i the Chief Executive’s review on pages 310 8

The Group continues to make progress with its turnaround programme and on 20 February 2012 announced that
cash margins were Improving and that second half performance was stronger than the first half However progress
has not been as rapid as onginally envisaged, and whilst trading remans challenging, in order to expedite the
turnaround and take advantage of the opportunities presented by the key trading periods of the UEFA Euro
Championships and the London 2012 Olympics, the Group has sought and agreed the terms of a strategic
Investment from Dick’s, & new strategic partner, and also agreed a package of further support from the Group's
other key investors and stakeholders
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Going concem {continued)

The Board decided to accept a strategic mvestment from Dick’s as, in addition to the significant capital resources
to be provided, the Board 1s of the view that the introduction of Dick's as a strategic partner will enable the
Company to draw upon Dick's valuable experience in the sports retal market, which, in turn, will assist
management N accelerating the Group’s revised business plan Dick’s 1s an authentic full-kne sporting goods
retaller based in the USA, offering a broad assortment of brand name sporting goods equipment, apparel and
footwear In a specalty store environment

The Company intends to raise £30 million {before expenses) in aggregate by way of the exercise of 2011 Warrants
and the 1ssue of the Subscription Shares and the First Convertible Loan Notes, conditional, among other things,
upon the passing of the Subscnption Resolutions at the General Meeting

The Company's four largest shareholders, and Dick’s have entered into a Subscription Agreement with the

Company pursuant to which

> the four largest shareholders have agreed to exercise 2011 Warrants resulting in the issue of 22,712,894 Warrant
Shares at an exercise price of 10 pence per share,

> the four largest shareholdars and Dick's have agreed to subscribe for a total of 83,787,106 Subscnption Shares
at 10 pence per share, and

> Dick’s has agreed to subscribe for the First Convertible Loan Notes in an aggregate principal amount of £18 75
millon and has been granted the nght {but does not have the obligation) fo subscrbe for the Second Corwvertible
Loan Notes In an aggregate pnncipal amount of up to £20 million, in each case subject to the terms and
conditions set out In the Convertible Loan Note Instrument

On 4 Apnl 2012, the Board also announced that it had reached agreement with BoS, the Company’s lender,
regarding the continued provision of the BoS Facility through to 31 May 2015, an agreement with adidas Group,
one of the Company’s key supplier partners, for the provision of a loan of up to £15 milion {of which £8 4 milkon
will be avallable for drawdown in the first year) and the terms of an intercreditor arrangement with BoS, Dick’s

and adidas Group, each agreement subject to completion of the Subscription and the satisfaction of certain other
condrtions precedent

The strategic investment and financing package will not address the medium term financing requirements of the
Group and accordingly the Company currently bebeves that it will require addibonal funding in the first quarter of
2013 Whist this additional funcing 1s not committed, the further round of funding Is expected to be pravided through
> the subscniption by Dick’s for the Second Convertible Loan Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
£20 milkon (that Dick's has the right (but not the obligation) to subscribe for under the terms of the
Subscnption Agreement),
> a further share offering of new Ordinary Shares, to the extent permitted by law and regulation, to all of
the Company’s shareholders to raise the aggregate sum of £5 muliion, and
> the continued support of BoS and the second tranche of the loan from adidas Group, amounting to
£6 6 millon, being made available for drawdown by the Company

Shareholder approval will be required for the 1ssue of the vanous securities and to obtain approval from the
‘Fakeover Panel for the level of Dick's future holdings (being up tc a maximum of 61 per cent of the Company’s
voting share capital) The shareholder vote to approve this transacton will take place on 26 Aprit 2012 If the
shareholder vote 1s not passed by Shareholders at the General Mesting and the transaction does not proceed,
the Company will be in default of the current BoS Facility and the Amended BoS Facility and the adidas Loan
Agreement will not become effective In these circumstances, and in the absence of any other funding proposal
given the imited headroom in the Group’s short term cash flow forecasts, the Directors would be likely to conduct
a formal sale process for the Company However, f a purchaser cannet be found for the Company under the
formal sale process, the Directors beleve that the Company will not be able to continue to trade as a going
concern which would result in the appointment of receivers, iquidators or administrators

i the transaction 1s approved, the Directors are confident that this package of support will provide the Group
with a solid platform from which to delver growth over the key trading periods of the UEFA Euro Championships
and the London 2012 Olympics However, our view remains that the UK retal market continues to be extremely
challenging and 1s likely to remain so for some time
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Statement of accounting policies
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

Goling concemn {continued)
As part of therr going concern assessment, the Directors have reviewed trading and cash flow forecasts which
take into consideration the uncertainties in the current operating environment The Directors have now concluded
that there are matenal uncertamties surrounding going concern These matenal uncertanties are
> securing the pre-requisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions,
> the ability of the Group to continue to implement its business recovery turnaround strategy in ight of
—the current macreeconomic envirenment and its Impact on consumer confidence and the UK retall sector,
this uncertain and volatile outiook n the UK economy results in difficulties in forecasting sales performance
m the short and medium term, and
- the Group's current stock profile which has been affected by management's control of costs and avallable
resources with the result that the Group's intake, availability, stock holding and profile of stock continue to be
substantially lower than it should be
Both of these factors are cnitical to the achievability of the Group’s business plan, which will be a vital factor in
maintaining sufficient headroom on cash and covenants, but also an impoertant factor in determining the timing
of the additronal funding expected to be required in the first quarter of 2013
> If the pre-reguisite approval from Shareholders of the Resolutions is not secured, secunng ongoing support
from BoS fo continue to trade whilst alternative support 1s sought

The Group's short-term cagh flow forecasts indicate that the Group will not experience a funding short fall before
the expected date of receipt of the net proceeds of the Subscnption on or around 27 Apnl 2012 However, the
headroom avallable to the Company In the period leading up to 27 Apnl 201215 very Imited and management
must continue to carefully control its cash and avatlable resources during this period

Based on the commercial basis of this transaction which 1 {o the benefit of the shareholders, the Directors have
no reason to believe that the vote will not proceed with a majonty Having regard to the factors set out in this going
concern assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that, should the investment proceed, the Group
will be in a position to deliver its turnaround strategy

The Directors have identfied a number of management intiatives that the business could pursue and which they
are confident # can achieve 1o help offset a potential dechine in frading including

> further cost reductions in addition to the current cost reduction programme,

> an improvement i its stockholding and/or extending terms wrth suppliers,

> management of capital expenditure, and

> the disposal of certain stores or operating units

The Directors have concluded that the combination of the crcumstances set out above represents a rmateriat
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt upon the Comparny's and the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore the Company and Group may be unable t© continue to realise assets and discharge
llablilities n the normal course of business However, given the strategic investment and financing package that

the Company is announcing today, the Board 1s confident that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
and the Company will have adaquate resources to continue i operational existence for the foreseeable future For
these reasons, they continue 1o adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and financial
statements This Annual Report does not include any adjustments that would result from the going concern basis
of preparation being nappropnate

Basis of consolidation

The Conselidated Financial statements incorporate the Financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidianes), together making up the Group Control 1s achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity 50 as 1o be able to obtan
benefits from its activities

On acquisition, the assets, labiliies and contingent habilities of a subsicdiary are measured at therr far values

at the date of acquisition Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the farr values of the identifiable net assets
acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable
net assets acquired 1s credited to capital reserve in the penod of acquisition

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of dunng the accounting penod are Included in the Consolidated
statement of financial performance from the effective date of acguisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropnate
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Basis of consolidation (continued)
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial statements of subsidianes to bnng the accounting
policies used Into Ine with those used by the Group

All ntra-group transactions, balances, Income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

No Company only statement of financial performance 1s presented for JJB Sports ple, as permitted by
Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008

Business combinations !
Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method The consideration for

each acquisition 1s measured at the aggregate of the far values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, tabilities

incurred or assumed, and equity nstruments 1ssued by the Group n exchange for control of the acquiree

Acquisition-related costs are recognised In profit or loss as incurred

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination 1s recognised as an asset at the dale that control 1s acquired (the
acquisition date) Goodwill 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred., the amount of
any non-controlling interest i the acquiree and the farr value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest {if any)
In the entity over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets and the labiliies assumed

If, after reassessment, the Group’s nterest in the far value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controing interest in the acquiree and the far value
of the acqurrer's previously held equity interest n the acquiree {f any), the excess 1s recegnised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargan purchase gan

Goodwill 1s not amorised but 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually For the purpose of impairment testing.
goodwil 15 allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impaiment annually,

or more frequently when there 1s an indication that the unit may be impaired i the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit 1s less than the carrying amount of the unit, the mparmeant loss 1 allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwall allocated 1o the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit Animparment loss recognised for goodwill 1s not reversed
in a subsequent period

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s ncluded in the determination of the profit or loss
on disposal

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
imparrnent loss

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction,
over therr estimated useful lves, using the straight-line method, as follows

Freehold buldings 50 years
Leasehold improvements  over the period of the lease
Plant and equipment 510 25 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over ther expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and I1s recognised int the Income staterment
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Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill and brand licence mtangible assets

At every Consolidated statement of financial position date, a review of the carrying amounts of the tangible and
ntangible assets, excluding goodwill and brand licence ntangible assets, 1s performed to determine whether
there 1s any Indication that those assets may have suffered an mpairment loss If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estimated in order to determine the extent, if any, of the mpairment loss
Where the asset does not generate cash fiows that are independent from other assets, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the value in use In assessing the value
in use, the estimated future cash fiows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the asset

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) iIs estimated to be less than its carrying amaount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment
loss s immediately recognised as an expense in the profit or 1oss

Where an imparment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unii) s
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an mpairment loss 1s immediately recogrised in the
profit or loss

Brand licence intangible assets
internally generated brand licence ntangible assets are not racorded on the Consohdated statement of
financial position

Acquired brands are carried at cost i the Consolidated statement of financial posiion Subject to an imparment
review, no amortisation 1s charged on those brand licence intangible assets which the Beard believes have an
indefinite Ife The cost of those brands which have a finte life are amortised over the penod during which the
Group and Company has the use of the brand

The Group carries out an impairment review on the brand licence intangible assets, at least annually, or when a
change In crcumstances or situation iNdicates that those assets have suffered an impairment loss Impairment 1s
measured by comparing the carrying amount of an intangible asset with the 'recoverable amount’ that 1s the fugher
of its fair value less costs to sell and s ‘value n use' 'Value in use’ 1s calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows, using a discount rate based on an estimate of the rate that the market would expect on an investment
of comparable nsk

Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost comprises direct matenals and, where
applicable, those averheads that have been ncurred In bringing the inventones to ther present location and
condition Cast 1s calculated using the FIFO (first in first out) method Net realisable value reprasents the: estirmated
seling price less all estmated costs to be incurred in marketing, sefing and distnbution Provision 1s madg for
obsolete, slow moving or damaged items where approprate

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand depostts and other short-term highly iquid
Irvestments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nisk of
changes in value

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amount of the proceeds receved, net of direct
issue costs Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs,
are accounted for on an accruals basis I the Staterment of financial performance using the effective interest rate
method and are added to the carrying amount of the nstrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
penod in which they anse
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a past event and 1t 1s probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the Directors’ best estimats
of the expenditure raquired to settle the obligation at the Consolidated statement of financial position date, taking
into account risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, and are discounted to present value where the
effect 1s matenal

Share based payments

Equity-settled share based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the

far value of the equity Instruments at the grant date The farr value excludes the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions Detalls regarding the determination of the farr value of equity-settied share based transactions are set
out In note 27 of the Notes to the Financial statements

The farr value determined at the grant date of the equity-settied share-based payments 1s expensed on a strarght-
line basis over the vesting penod, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest

At each Statement of financial position date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity nstruments
expected to vest as a resuft of the effect of non market-based vesting conditions The impact of the revision

of the onginal estmates, If any, 1S recogrised In profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustrment to equity reserves

SAYE share options granted to employees are treated as cancelied when employees cease to contribute to the
scheme This results In accelerated recognition of the expenses that would have ansen over the remainder of the
oniginal vesting period

For cash-settled share-based paymenits, a hability 1s recogrised for the goods or services acquired, measured
nitially at the far value of the liability, at each Statement of financial position date until the liability 1s settled, and
at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability 1s remeasured, with any changes in far value recogrused
In profit or loss for the year

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the consideration received or recevable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, retumns, VAT
and other sales related taxes

In the case of goods sold through the retail stores, revenue is recogrised when goods are sold and the title has
passed

Revenue also includes income generated from the prowvision of sports and leisure faciities at the Group's fitness
clubs, the majorty of which were sold on 25 March 2009 This revenue 1s recogrused in the accounting period
during which the facility 1s made available to members of the fitness clubs Revenue from joming fees are
contributions to cover cosis of the admirustration of new members and are credited to revenue in the accounting
period of the receipt of that revenue

Finance iIncome 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective Interast
rate applicable

Leasmng
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantrally all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee Al other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Rental income from cperating leases 1s recogrised on a straight-ine basis over the term of the relevant lease Initial
direct costs Incurred in negotrating and aranging an operating lease are added to the canrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term
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The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at therr far value or, If lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease The corresponding lliability

to the lessor 15 Included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the llabilty Finance expenses are recognised immediately

In profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are captalised In
accordance with the Group's general policy on borrowing costs {(see above) Contingent rentals are recognised

as expenses in the penods in which they are incurred

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term ofthe
relevant lease

Benefits recenved and recevable as an incentive to enter nto an operating lease are also spread on a straight-line
basis over the lease term

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as thay fall due

Foreign currencies

In prepanng the Financial statements of the individual Comparnies, transactions in currencies other than pounds
sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions At each Consolidated
statement of financial position date, monetary assets and habilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the exchange rates prevailing on the Consolidated statement of financial positton date Gains and
losses arising on retranslation are recognised in the Consoldated statement of financial performangce for the period
m which the gain or loss anses except for exchange differences ansing on non-monetary assets and habilties
where the changes in farr value are recognised directly in equity

For the purpose of presenting Consalidated Financial staterments, the assets and liabilties of the Group’s overseas
operations are translated at exchange rates prevaiing on the Consolidated statement of financial pesition date
Income and expense tems are translated at the average exchange rates for the accounting period Exchange
differences ansing are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's foreign currency translation reserve Such
translation differences are recogrised as Income or expense N the penod in which the operation 15 disposed of
Differences ansing from prior penods have been frozen

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquistion of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
labitiies of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate The Group has elected to treat goodwill and

far value adjustments ansing on acquisthons before the date of transiiion to IFRS as sterling-denominated assets
and liabiles

Taxation
The taxation (credit) expense represents the sum of the tax currently (recevable) payable and deferred tax

The taxation currently {recevable) payable 1s based upon the taxable {loss) profit for the accounting penod
Taxable {loss) profit differs from net (loss) profit as reported in the Consolidated statement of financial performance
because it excludes rtems of ncome or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible The Group's liability for current tax s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substartively enacted by the Statement of financial position date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities in the Financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of
taxable (loss) profit, and 1s accounted for using the Consolidated statement of financial position lability method
Deferred tax labilies are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available aganst which deductible termporary
differences can be utiised Such assets and liabilties are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from
the nitial recognition (other than in a business combination) of cther assets and liabiliies i a transaction that
affects neither the taxable {loss) profit nor the accounting {loss) profit
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Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each Consolidated statement of financial position date,
and reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to aflow all

or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the penod when the hability 1s settled

or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the Consolidated statement of financial performance,

except when it relates to tems charged or credited drrectly to equity. In which case the deferred tax is also dealt
with in equity

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabiities are recognised in the Group's Consolidated statement of financial position,
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the iInstrument

Financial assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment i1g
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the tmeframe established by the market
concerned, and are Intially measured at far value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are intially measured at far value

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories financial assets at ‘far value through profit
or loss' {(FVTPL) and ‘loans and receivables’ The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and 1s determined at the tme of inrsal recognition

Effective interest method

The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest ncome over the relevant penod The effective nterest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including alt fees on points paid or recetved that form an integral part of the effective Interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected Iife of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter penod

Income 1s recogrised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
designated as at FVTPL

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans, and other recevables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

In an active market are classified as loans and recevables Loans and recenables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any imparrment Interest income 1s recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term recavables when the recognition of interest would be immatenal

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly iquid
Investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an nsignificant nsk of
changes in value

Financial habiliies and equity instruments
Financial labilities and equity Instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into

Equity instruments

An equity Instrument 1S any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of ts habies  Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
1IssUe costs
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Financtal iabilities at FVTPL

Financial habilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial lability 1s erther held for trading or it 1s designated
as at FVTPL Financial labilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gam or loss recogrised in
profit or loss The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss Incorporates any nterest pad on the financial labiity
Farr value 1s determined In the manner described i note 39 of these Notes to the financial statements

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, Including borrowings, are inibally measured at farr value, net of transaction costs Other
financial labilites are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective nterest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective yield basis The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial habiity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant pericd The effectve
Interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected Iife of the
financial lability, or, where appropnate, a shorter perod

Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are items that are unusual based on therr size, nature or Incidence and which the Directors
consider should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group’s results The total balance
Is disclosed on the face of the Consolidated statement of financial performances with further detail n the Notes to
the Financial statements
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Notes to the Financial statements
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

1 General nformation

JJB 8ports plc 1s a Company incorporated n the United Kingdom The address of the registered office 1s given
on page 81 of the Annual Report The nature of the Group's operations and its principal activities are set out n the
Chief Executive's review on pages 3 to 8 of the Annual Report

2 Cntical Judgements in applying the Group's and the Company’s accounting policies

In the application of the Grroup's accounting policies, which are described in the Statement of accounting policies
on pages 40 to 48, the Directors are required to make judgements, estmates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and hiabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expernience and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results
may differ from these estmates

The following are the crtical jJudgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial
statements

Going concem
Going concern s a ¢ritical jJudgement, refer to pages 40 to 42

Impatrment of subsidiary undertakings

The calculation for considenng the impairment of the carrying value of subsidiary undertakings requires a
companson of the present value of the retal operating units within the subsidiary undertakings to the value of
those subsidiary undertakings Iin the Company statement of financial posrtion The caleulation of present value
requires an estimation of the future pre-tax cash flows expected to arise from the retail operating units and the
selection of a suitable discount rate

The carrying amount of subsidiary undertakings in the Company statement of financial posttion at 29 January 2012
was £20 8 millon {2011 £20 @ million} and following the impairment review, an impairment charge was not found
to be necessary inthe 52 weeks t0 29 January 2012 (2011 £1477 milion)

Impairment of goodwill

The calculation for considering the iImpairmenit of the carrying amount of goodwill requires a companson of the
present value of the retall operating units for which goodwill has been allocated, to the value of goodwill In the
Consplidated statement of financial position The calculation of present value requires an estmation of the future
pre-tax cash flows expected to anse from the retall operating units and the selection of a suitable discount rate

Following the Impairment review, an impairment charge was not found to be necessary, n the 52 weeks to

29 January 2012, (2011 £92 6 million, £88 1 millions in respect of Blane Leisure Limited and £4 5 mullion i respect
of Sports Division (Eireann) Limited) The carrying arnount of goodwill in the Consolidated statement of financial
position at 29 January 2012 was £13 8 millon {2011 £13 8 milion) {see note 14 of these Notes 1o the Financial
statements for further details)

Impairment of intangible fixed assets
The Group has made a provision of £7 8 mifton at 29 January 2012 (2011 £nil) in respect of the brand licences,
due to uncertanties of assoclated future cash flows

Impasrment of tangible fixed assets

The Group provided £11 5 million at 29 January 2012 {2011 £3 8 nuflion) in respect of property, ptant and
eguipment £6 8 milicn of the impairment represents a provision against the asset held within the CVA stores
which are due to be closed by April 2013 and £4 7 million represents a prowision against the assets of stores
which are loss making and are expected to continue making losses

Property provisions

The Group provided £21 2 millon at 29 January 2012 (2011 £13 6 million) in respect of 1ts closed stores These
costs have been estimated by reference to the length of ime necessary to ext the leases and the scale of any
lump sums estimated to be necessary to achieve the exit The estmates are based upon available information and
knowledge of the property market The ultimate costs to be incurred in this regard may vary from the estimates
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2 Cntical Judgements In applying the Group’s and the Company’s accounting policies
(continued)

Stock provisions

Stock provisions are established to reduce the carrying value of stock to the lower of cost and net realisable value
This requires an estimate to be made as to which stocks are likely to be sold at less than cost and the price at
which these stocks are likely to be sold

3 Revenue
An analysis of revenue s as follows

52 waeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£7000 £ 000

Ongoing cperations
Revenue from retall operations 282,722 361,340
Revenue from fitness clubs 1,484 1,554
Revenue - statement of financial performance 284,206 362,804
Other operating iIncome 2,682 1,848
Investment iIncome 13 512
Total revenue 287,001 365,254

4 Business segments

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of mternal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive to allocate resources 1o the segments and to assess their
performance The Chief Executive reviews internal reports compnsing only the retall division As such, there is only
one segment These resulis of the business segment are disclosed on the face of the consolidated staternent of
financial performance

Revenues from major products and services and information about major customers

Information regarding the above 1s required by [FRS 8 (32 and 34) but 1s not given in these Notes to the Financial
statements because of the nature of the Group's business The Group’s principal actwvty is that of retaling of

a wide range of sports clothing, footwear and equipment, and 1s shown above and therefore the disclosure

of revenues from major products 1s not appropriate and as the Group's revenue I1s denived from sales to the general
public, then t has no major customers

Geographical segments

The Group’s reporting format 1s by business segment Afthough the Group operates in two geographic segments,
the UK and Eire, neither the revenue from sales to external customers nor the value of net assets within Erre
represent more than 10 per cent of Group totals hence 1s not separately disclosed
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5 Exceptional items

Group

52 weeks to 52 wesks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Goodwil impairment {note 14) - 92,610
Reorganisation costs 5,718 4,524
HMRC provision 5,324 676
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,802 582
Impairment of intangible fixed assets (note 15) 7,829 -
Imparment of fixed assets of CVA stores (note 16) 6,815 3,841
Impairment of fixed assets of loss making stores {note 16) 4,748 -
Property provisions 14,972 5,789
Release of deferred lease incentives - (66)

47,208 15,346

47,208 107,956

Goodwill mpairment n the prior perod represented the write down required following a review of goodwill, which
arose on the acquisihon of Sports Division This was a non-cash iiem Further details are included in note 14 of
these Notes to the Financial statements

Reorganisation costs relate to costs incurred from the restructuring of the Group, which remains ongoing

HMRC prowision relates to a provision for a non-recurning matter which the Group 1s currently discussing with
HMRC

Details in relatton to the impairment of fixed assets and property provisions can be found in notes 16 and 23,
vespectively, of these Notes to the Financial statements

6 Loss before taxation
Loss before taxation of the Group has been arnved at after charging

Continuing operattons

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Exceptional items {see note 5) 47,208 107,956
Amortisation of gther iIntangible assets 2,913 3294
Depreciation of property, plant and egupment 8,081 9,269
Staff costs (see note 7) 53,828 63,366
Auditor's remuneration — Audit Fees (see note overleaf) 215 189
— Non-audit Fees (see note overleaf) 528 362

Cost of inventories recognised as expense 181,162 219179
Write down of inventornies 1o net realisable value 8,697 12,154
Operating leasss — plant and machinery 392 700

Operating leases — land and buildings 40,986 52,303
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6 Loss before taxation (continued)

Auditor’s remuneration
Amounts payable to Deloitte LLP and therr associates by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings are
set out below

52 weeks o 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£°000 £'000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor with respect to the audit of the Company's
annual accounts 135 119
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and therr associates for other audit services
to the Group
Audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 80 80
Total audit fees 215 199
Non-audt fees
Reporting Accountant services 514 370
Tax services adwvisory services 4 22
Other services 10 -
Total non-audit fees 528 392
743 591

Of the Reporting Accountant fees inthe 52 weeks to 29 January 2012 of £514,000, £274,000 related to
the Second Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer undertaken dunng Apnl 2011, £240,000 related to
the CVA process A further £10,000 was atinbutable to a review of internal audit procedures

The Reporting Accountant fees in the 52 weeks to 30 January 2011 of £370,000 relate to the First Firm Placing
and Placing and Open Offer undertaken dunng February 2011

A description of the work of the Audit committee I1s set out in the Corporate Governance report on page 17 of the
Annual Report and on page 17 there is an explanation of how auditor cbjectvity and independence 1s safeguarded
when non-audit services are provided by the audror

7 Staff cosis
(8) The aggregate remuneration comprised

Group Company
52 weeks to S52weeksto 52 weeksto 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January 29 Janruary 30 January
2012

201 2012 2011

£°000 £000 £'000 £ 000

Wages and salares 48,586 57,026 36,590 45,414
Soclal security costs 3,143 3,666 2,635 2,950
Other pension costs {see note 40) 389 229 389 229
Share based payment (see note 31) 1,710 2,545 1,710 2,545

53,828 63,366 41,324 51,138
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7 Staff costs (continued)
(b) The average number of persons and therr full time equivalents employed by the Group and Company during
the accounting penod (including Executive Directors) was as follows

Average number of employees Full time equivatents

52 weeks to S2weeksto 52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Number Number Number Number
Sales and distribution 4,852 6,471 2,610 3,553
Administration 256 230 256 226
5,108 8,701 2,866 3,779

Average number of employees Full ime equivalents

52 weeks to 52weeksio 52 weeksto 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January

2012 2011 2012 201

Company Number Nurmber Number Number
Sales and distribution 3,452 4,936 1,834 2,944
Administration 256 230 256 226
3,708 5,166 2,090 3,170

() Key management personnel

The remuneration of the Company's Directors and the members of the Company's aperatmg board {(who are
not members of the Executive Board but are the key management personnel of the Group), 1s set out below in
aggregate for each of the expense categones specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Further nformation
about the remuneration of Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration repert on
pages 25 to 29

Group

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£°000 £'000
Short-term employee benefits 1,119 2,629
Post employment benefits 285 -~
Termination benefits 4 352
Share based payments 1,710 2,545
3,118 5,526

8 Investment income

Group

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011

£'000 £ 000

Interest on benk deposts 113 130
Interest on loan note deposit - 382
13 512

All of the above is finance ncome earned on the financial assets being loans and recevables (including cash and
bank borrowings)
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9 Finance costs

Group

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£'000 £1000

Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 538 834
Finance costs 28 228
Exceptional bank arrangement fees and charges - 100
566 1,162

10 Taxation

Taxation can be reconciled to the loss before taxation shown in the Consolidated statement of financial
performance as follows

Group
52 weeks to 52 weeks 1o
29 January 2012 30 January 2011
£'000 % £1000 %
Loss before taxation {101,129} (181,385)
Tax at the current UK corporation tax rate (26,597) 263 {50,782} 280
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible
In determning taxable loss 276 (0 3) 26,178 {14 4)
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 6,399 (63) 317 {18)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidianes
operating n other junsdictions 1,319 (13) 604 {0 3)
Tax effect of unrecognised losses 18,603 (18 4) 20,883 (11 5)

Total taxation and effective tax rate for the penod - = = -

11 Loss atiributable to JUB Sports plc

As permitted under Section 408 of the Companies Act 20086, no separate Statement of financial performance
15 presented in respect of the Parent Company

The loss after taxation for the accounting penod dealt with in the Financial statements of the Parent Company,
JJB Sports plc, was £72,009,000 (2011 loss £205,565,000)

12 Dimvdends
No dnadends have been paid or proposed for the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012 (2011 nil)
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The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per Ordinary Share and of adjusted basic loss per Ordinary Share

are based on the following data

52week to 52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 2012 30 January 2041° 30 January 2011**
Loss Loss Loss
per share per share per share
From contmuing operations £'000 {pence) £ 000 (pence) £'000 {pence)

Loss for the purposes of basic loss per
Ordinary Share and diluted loss per
Ordinary Share being net loss
attributable to equity holders

of the parent (101,129) (40 40)p {181,365) (7245)p (181,365) (278 66)p
Exceptional tems — goocdwill impairment - - 92,610 3699 92610 142°29p
— other exceptional tems 47,208 18 86p 15,346 613p 15346 23 58p

Loss for the purposes of adjusted basic
loss per Ordinary Share being net loss
attrbutable to equity holders of the
parent before exceptional operating
items, net of taxation

(63,921) (21.54)p (73.409) (2933)p (73,409) (11279)p

52 weeks to 52 weeks fo
29 January 30 January
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Loss for the purposes of basic loss per Ordinary Share and diluted loss per
Ordinary Share being net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent (101,129) {181,365}
Effect of dilutve potential Ordinary Shares
Fair value adjustment of warrants {2,935) -
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss per Ordinary Share {104,064) {181,365)

Number of Ordinary Shares (thousands)

52 weeks to 52 weeks to 52 waeks to
29 January 30 January 30 January
2012 2011~ 2011
Nurnber of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of basic loss
per Ordinary Share and adjusted basic loss per
Ordinary Share {restated - ses below) 250,345 250,345 66,083
Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary Shares
Share options 16,460 - -
Number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of
diuted loss per Ordinary Share 266,805 250,345 65,083
Continuing cperations
Basic loss per Ordinary Share (40 40)p (7245)p (278 6B)p
Diluted loss per Ordinary Share (39 00)p (724B)p (278 66)p
Adjusted basic loss per Ordinary Share (21 54)p (29 33)p (112 79%p

-

Firm Placing and Open Offers completed dunng February 2011 and Apnl 2011

-

The number of Ordinary Shares in 1ssue for the period ended 30 January 2011 has been represented to take account retrospectively of the

The number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of the prior year earmngs share calculations has been restated to remove the effect of the

Firm Placing and Open Offers completed dunng February 2011 and Apnl 2011 As these were cash-settled, 1AS 33 Eamings per share

requires that they be excluded from retrospective restatement calculations

Due to the current year losses and losses brought forward for taxation purposes, no taxation has been allocated

for the purpose of koss per share calculations




56 JJB Sports plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Financial statements

Notes to the Financial statements contnued
For the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012

14 Goodwill
Group
£'000
Cost
As at 31 January 2010 and 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 257,291
Accumulated impairment losses
At 31 January 2010 150,885
Imparment ioss for the period 92,610
At 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 243,485
Carrying amount
At 29 January 2012 13,796
At 30 January 2011 13,796

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at acquisition to the individual companies that are
expected to benefit from that business combination The goodwill arose on the retall operations of the acquisitions
and 15 not allocated on a store by store basis After recognition of mpairment logses, the carrying amount of
goodwill relates to Blane Leisure Limited

The Group tests goodwill annually for mpairment or more frequently If there are ndications that goodwill might
be mpared

No impairments have been made in the cunent year The following impairments were made in the pnor period

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 201

£000 £'000

Blane Lesure Limited - 88,058
Sports Dwision (Ereann) Linmited - 4,652
- 92,610

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (CGUs) on which goodwill has ansen are determined from
value In use calculations The key assumptions for the value In use calculations are those regarding sales and

profit growth rates which are dependent on sporting events, sales mix and expeciations of gross profit margins
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the nisks specific to the cash generating units The Group has prepared cash flow forecasts for
the 52 weeks to January 2013 and January 2014, that take into account sporting events and expectations of sales
miux derived from the pre-tax operating results of the cash generating units for the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012
Cash flows are extrapolated for the remaning lengths of the store leases, extending profitable stores for a further
15 year lease term The prafit growth rate which has been applied in the forecasts for the 52 weeks to January 2014
onwards 1s 2 per cent

The pre-iax rate used to discount the cash flow forecasts 1s 20 0 per cent (2011 16 0 per cent) This discount rate
reflects management’s estimate of the time value of money and risks specific to the CGUSs for which future cash
flow estimates have not been adjusted

The imparment calculation 1s sensitive to profit growth rates and also to the discount rate used in the calculation
For there (0 be an mpairment, the ¢cash flow progctons would need to be extrapolated beyond the most recent
forecast with a negative growth rate of greater than 14 per cent or a discount rate of greater than 35 per cent

The bases and methodology upon which the value in use has been determined 1s performed on a store by store
basis using forecast results from 2012/13 and 2013/14 taking into account future sporting events and expectations
of sales mix

The imparment loss of £92 6 milllon at 30 January 2011 represented the impairment to camrying value of goodwill
of Blane Leisure Limited and Sports Division (Ereann} Limited which were imparred due to a substantial
underperformance of the business and the losses Incurred over the previous two years

The accounting jJudgements and sources of estmation uncertainty involved in assessing any imparrment loss are
referred to In note 2 of these Notes to the Financal statements
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15 Other intangible assets

Group and Company

Other
Brand intangible

licences assets Total
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost
At 31 January 2010 30,244 2,872 33,116
Addions — 1,100 1,100
At 30 danuary 2011 30,244 3,972 34,216
Additions - 972 Q72
At 29 January 2012 30,244 4,944 35,188
Amortisation
At 31 January 2010 8,778 1,969 10,747
Charge for the perod 1,800 1,494 3,294
At 30 January 2011 10,678 3,463 14,041
Charge for the period 1,807 1,106 2,913
Imparrment 7,829 — 7,829
At 29 January 2012 20,214 4,569 24,783
Carrying amount
At 29 January 2012 10,030 375 10,405
At 30 January 2011 19,666 509 20175

Included within the cost value of Brand licences at 29 January 2012 15 a value of £10,023,000 in respect of the
exclusive brand rights to the use of the “Slazenger” name on certain golf and related products which are held
under a 999 year licence, of which 986 years reman An imparment calculaton was performed to estmate the
present value of future cash flows expecied to anse from this Brand The key assumptions for this calculation were
based on the gross profit on the sale of products which are branded Slazenger, for the 62 weeks to 29 January
2012, extrapolated over the next 15 years assuming 2 per cent profit growth and a pre-tax weighted average cost
of capttal of 16 0 per cent (2011 16 O per cent) The period of the projected cash flows 1s of a longer period than

5 years because of the length of the licence The Directors believe the Stazenger brand icence to have a long life
and a residual value in excess of cost, therefore no amortisation charge has been made at 29 January 2012 on the
grounds of mmatenalty (2011 £nil)

Other mtangible assets at 29 January 2012 include an impairmeant provision of £7,829,000 in respect of brand
licences Uncertanties have ansen with respect to associated future cash flows as the entity with which the kcence
18 held, has entered administration

The other Intangible assets are amortised over therr estmated useful lives, which 1s an average of 3 years
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Group
Freehold land Short leasehold Plant and
and buildings property equipment Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £ 000

Cost
At 31 January 2010 17,746 3,044 163,462 184,252
Additions - 36 4,053 4,089
Exchange differences - - (101} (101)
Disposals (70) (391) (3,885) {4,346)
At 30 January 2011 17676 2,689 163,529 183,894
Additions — 21 2,841 2,862
Exchange differences - - (294) (294)
Disposals — {610) (24,773) {25,383)
At 29 January 2012 17,676 2,100 141,303 161,079
Accurnulated depreciation
At 31 January 2010 4,106 1,486 103,969 109,561
Charge for the period 34 122 8,806 9,269
Impairment - 119 3,722 3,841
Exchangeg differences - - (28) (28}
Elrminated on disposals {49) {173) (3,386) (3,608)
At 30 January 2011 4,398 1554 113,083 119,035
Charge for the period 340 89 7,642 8,081
imparrment - 404 11,159 11,563
Exchange differences - - (128} (128)
Elrminated on disposals - (824) (22,739) [23,563)
At 289 January 2012 4,738 1,233 109,017 114,988
Carrying amount
At 29 January 2012 12,938 867 32,286 46,091
At 30 January 2011 13,278 1,135 50,446 64,859

In the period ended 30 January 2011, the mparrment related to the carrying value of assets within the first tranche
of CVA stores not being supported by expected future cash flows This totalled £3,841,000 In the penod ended
29 January 2012, an impairment of £6,815,000 has ansen relating to the stores closed as part of the second stage
of the CVA and a further £4,748,000 relates to loss making stores that the Group expects to contnue to make
losses The recoverable value was identified as the value in use totaling £46,091,000 (2011 £64,859,000)
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16 Property, plant and equipment {continued)

Companry
Freehold land Short leasehold Plant and
and buldings property equipment Total
£ 000 £:000 £'000 £ 000

Cost
At 31 danuary 2010 17,358 1,109 121,689 140,157
Additions - 18 2,332 2,350
Disposals - (39) (2,.292) (2,331)
At 30 January 2011 17,359 1,088 121,729 140,176
Additions - 21 2,508 2,527
Dispasals — (484) (20,432) (20,916)
At 29 January 2012 17,359 625 103,803 121,787
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 January 2010 3,850 452 75,888 80,190
Charge for the period 333 47 7,261 7,641
Impairment — 85 3,416 3,481
Eliminated on disposals - (31) (1,870) (1,901)
At 30 January 2011 4183 533 84,695 89,411
Charge for the penod 333 38 5,172 6,643
Impairment - 277 5,433 5710
Elminated on disposals — (579) (19,523) (20,102)
At 29 January 2012 4,516 269 76,777 81,562
Garrying amount
At 29 January 2012 12,843 356 27,026 40,225
At 30 January 2011 13176 555 37,034 50,765

In the pericd ended 30 January 2011, the mpairment related to the carrying value of assets within the first tranche
of CVA stores not being supported by expected future cash flows This totalled £3,481,000 In the period ended
29 January 2012, animpairment of £5,710,000 has arisen relating to the stores closed as part of the second stage
of the CVA The recoverable value was identified as the value in use totaling £40,225,000 (2011 £50,765,000)

17 Investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Company
£ 000

Cost
At 3% January 2010, 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 303,171
Accumulated prowision for impairment
At 31 January 2010 (134,597)
Charge for the penod (147,680)
At 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 {282,277)
Carrying amount
At 29 January 2012 20,894
At 30 January 2011 20,894

Goodwill of £237,000 which arose on the acquisition of a subsidiary in 1993 was written off against reserves in that
accountng penod
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17 Investments (continued)

The carrying value of iInvestments in subsidiary undertakings has been reviewed for impairment at 29 January
2012 This review was carried out by making a companson of the present value of the future pre-tax cash flows

of the retall operating units within the subsidiary undertakings, to the value of those subsidiary undertakings in the
Company statement of financial position A discount rate was used that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and a wetghted average cost of capital of 20 O per cent (2011 16 O per cent) Following the
impairment review, no mpaimesnt charge was found to be necessary at 29 January 2012 (2011 £147,680,000)

The accountng jJudgements and sources of estmation uncertainty nvolved in assessing any imparment provision
are referred to In note 2 of these Notes to the Financial statements

Detaills of the investments in subsidiaries whose results or financial posmhon principally affect these Financial
staternents are as follows

Placeof  Issued share
in¢orporation capital held  Actoty

Blane Leisure Limited Scotland 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equipment

Sports Division (Eireann) Limited Eire 100% Retailer of sportswear and sports equiprment

Dormant and non-trading companies are not isted in the above table

18 Inventories

Group Company
29 January 30 January 28 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 201
£'000 £'000 £:000 £:00C
Goods for resale 47,302 52,725 38,727 45,204

The net replacement value of inventones 1s not considered to be matenally different from that stated in the
Consolidated statement of financial position

19 Trade and cther recevables

Group Company

29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January

2012 2011 2012 2011

£°000 £000 £'000 £'000

Trade recenables 1,749 1,393 1,636 1,269
Allowance for doubtiul debts (766) (945) (753) {889)
983 448 883 380

Other recevables and prepayments 6,660 8,629 8,621 7,216
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - — 4,152 4,152
Value added tax 149 - 1,097 678
7,792 8,077 14,753 12,426

No interest 1s charged on any trade recervables that are overdue A provision has been made for the estimated
rrecoverable amounts Included in trade receivables This provision has been determined by reference to past
default expenence and knowledge of the individual circumstances of certain debtors

Before accepting any new customer, the Group and Company perform credit checks and review trade references
In order {o assess the potential customer's credit qualty and then define credit Iimits by individual customer Credit
nsk is managed on a regular basis in order to minimise the exposure by revewing adherence to setilement terms
Credit imits and terms are only mcreased based on past settlements

In determining the recoverability of any trade receivables, the Group and Company considers any change in the
credit qualrty of the trade recesvables from the date credit was inihally granted up to the end of the accounting
penod The concentration of creckt nsk s imited due to the vaned customer base
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19 Trade and other recevables (continued)
The ageing of trade recewvables 1s as follows

Group Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 201 2012 201
£'00¢ £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Neither past due nor impaired
0-30 days 351 233 264 197
Past due but not mpared
31-60 days 622 10 617 9
61-90 days 1 30 1 -
91-120 days 2 86 1 81
120+ days 7 89 - 93
Past due and mparred
31-80 days 11 - M -
61-90 days 48 - 48 -
120+ days 677 845 664 889
Total 1,749 1,393 1,636 1,269

Of the trade recevables for the Group, 201 per cent (2011 16 7 per cent) and for the Company 16 1 per cent
{2011 155 per cent) are nether past due nor iImpaired

Included in trade receivablas at 29 January 2012 are debtors with a carrying ameunt for the Group of £632,0C0
(2011 £215,000) and for the Company of £618,000 (2011 £183,000) which are past due at that date, for which
the Group has not made any provision for an irrecoverable amount because there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the amounts are stili considered recoverable The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances

The movements In the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows

Group Company
28 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at tha beginming of the period 945 2.824 889 2,654
Impairment provision utihised (179) {1,879} (136) (1,765)
Balance at the end of the pericd 766 945 753 889

Included in the allowance for doubtiul debts are individually impaired trade recevables with a balance for the
Group of £58,000 (2011 £221,000) and for the Company £54,000 (2011 £79,000) which have been placed into
igudation The mparment which has been recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount
of these trade receivables and the present value of the expected Iiqudaton proceeds The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables 1s approximately equal to ther
farr valug

20 Cash and cash equwvalents

Croup Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
012 201 2012 2011
£°0600 £ 000 £°000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,638 5,859 2,894 735

The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value
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21 Trade and cther payables

Group Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 17,712 38,471 17,438 44403
Other payables and accruals 23,501 24,381 20,014 10,307
Defarred lease incentives (see note 25) 3,533 3,410 3,355 3,225
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 135,430 153,857
Value added tax - 480 - —
Payroll and social secunty taxes 943 1,672 902 1,627

45,689 68,384 177,139 213,419

Trade payables principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs The average
credit period taken for trade purchases as at 29 January 2012 18 51 days {2011 76 days)

No interest 1s charged on the trade payables outstanding balances

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to therr farr value

22 Borrowings

Group Company
2¢ January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts 15,915 24,678 15,915 24,678
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement within 2-5 years 15,915 24,678 15,915 24,678

All Group and Company bank overdrafts and bank loans are based in sterling

Amendments to banking faciities in the perniod

On 1 February 2011, the Company and Bank of Scotland {“BaS") agreed an amendment to the existing BoS
Faciity including the waiver of (i) the fixed charge cover test on the April 2011 Quarter Bate and (1) the clean down
test for the period ended 30 January 2011 Further covenants were included withun the amendment agreement

On 15 March 2011 the Company and BoS agreed further amendments to the existing BoS Facility and also agreed
an Amended BoS Facility following receipt of proceeds under the Second Firm Placing and Placing and Open
Offer (and certain other customary conditions precedent)

The Amended BoS Facility came into effect on 27 Apnl 2011

The key terms of the Amended BoS Facility are as follows

> The matunty date of the facility was extended to 31 May 2014, and

> An overdraft facility of £7 5 million 1s centained within the £25 mullion faciity it

The weighted average interest rate paid by both Group and Company was 5 6 per cent (2011 56 per cent)

Further amendments have besn made to the BoS Fagility post period end, see note 42

Undrawn borrowing facilities

At 29 January 2012, the Group had an undrawn committed borrowing facility of £8 8 million (2011 £nil), in respect
of which all condiions precedent had been met, aganst the BoS £25 millon facility
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23 Provisions
Current habilities

Vacant

stores  Dilapidations Onercus
provision provision leases Totat
£000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Group
At 30 January 2011 2,998 3,076 562 6,636
Reclassification from (to) non-current habilties 1,343 {1,855) - (512)
Created in the penod 8,228 - 38 8,266
Utlised in the penod {3,157) (207) (148) {3,510)
Released in the period {3,518) (420) {454) (4,392)
At 29 January 2012 5,894 594 - 6,488
Company
At 30 January 2011 1,920 1,999 - 3919
Reclassification from (to) non-current habilthes 1,130 (939) - 12
Created in the period 6,433 — - 65,433
Utihlsed in the penod (2,601) (179) - (2,780)
Released in the perniod (3,214) (338) — {3,552)
At 29 January 2012 3,668 543 - 4,211
Non-current habilities
Vacant stores Compromised  Dilapidations Onerous
provision lease fund provision leases Total
£ 000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Group
At 30 January 2011 10,508 ~- - 278 10,876
Reclassification {to} from current habilities (1,343) - 1,855 - 512
Created In the period 11,742 2,500 15 214 14,471
Utilsed in the penod (1,679 - - {350) {2,029)
Released in the pernod {3,980) - - (142) 4,122)
At 29 January 2012 15,338 2,500 1,870 - 19,708
Company
At 30 January 2011 6,937 - - - 6,937
Reclassification (to) from current liabilities (1,130) - 939 - {191)
Created in the period 8,570 2,022 — - 10,592
Utiised in the penod (805) - - - (805)
Released in the penod {2,940) — - - (2,940)
At 29 January 2012 10,632 2,022 939 - 13,593

The vacant stores provisions represent the estimated costs expected to be incurred in exiting the relevant lease
agreements and mn some cases ongong rents and rates The provision includes closed stores and restructured
stores compnsing units commitied to close before the end of April 2008, stores withm the 2009 CVA and stores
within the 2011 CVA

The compromised lease fund 1s payable to landlords as part of the 2011 CVA and 1s due after a Fund Tngger Date,
being the earlier of 24 April 2013, the date the equrty shares of JUB cease to be hsted and traded on any
recognised stock exchange and the unconditional date of an offer made for the Company The total amount
payable by the Company will be between £2 5 millen and £7 5 million, the amount determined by comparing

the value of the Market Caprtalisation of the Company on the Fund Tnigger Date to the amount of the Target Equity
Raising of £96 5 millon This compromise can be settled in cash or shares, at the discretion of the Company

The dilapidations provision 1s the best estimate of the present value of expenditure expected 1o be incurred by the
condition reguired under the indmvidual lease agreements at the end of ther term
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23 Provisions (continued)

The onerous lease provision represented the direct expenditure expected to be incurred on one of the two
soccerdomes relatmg to a dispute with the existing tenant which has now been settled The provision consisted of
the costs expected to be incurred dunng the dispute, together with the ongomg overhead expenses, including rent
and rates No rental income 1s currently being received from the site This property 1s now closed and unoccupied,
and the provision has been released and reclassified as a vacant store provision

Current liability provisions are expected to be settled dunng the 52 weeks to 27 January 2013, the non-current
hability provisions are expected to be settied after this date

24 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) llabilities recognised by the Group and Company and movements
therean

Group Company

£ 000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances
At 31 January 2010 - -
Depreciation in excess of capital alowances 9,728 9,481
Recogrised losses {8,728) (9,481)
At 30 January 2011 - —
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 5,078 5,078
Recognised losses (5,078) {5,078)
At 29 January 2012 - -

At the Consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group had net unused tax losses of £571 million
(2011 £418 millon) avarlable for offset aganst future profits No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to
ongoing uncertanty around the future taxable profits avalable

A deferred tax asset has been recognised to the extent that 1t offsets against the deferred tax habity in respect
of losses exceeding capital allowances in excess of depreciation

No deferred tax has been recogrised in respect of losses exceeding caprtal allowances in excess of depreciation
of £521 millon net loss (2011 £31 6 million)

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax in respect of capital losses of £4 9 milion (201 €5 2 millon) avalable
1o set off against future capital gans

25 Deferred lease incentives

Group Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2043
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £900
Current labilities, to be released within 1 year (see note 21) 3,533 3,410 3,355 3,225
Non-current habilities, to be released after more than 1 year 10,292 11,733 8,429 9,629

Deferred lease incentives compnise Inducements given by landlords to enter into operating leases of certan land
and buldings All ncentives received are released to the Consolidated statement of financeal performance on
a straight Ine basis over the term of the individlual lease
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26 Share capital

Issued share capital

Group and Company

Number
£'000 Thousands

Allotted, called up and fully paid

At 31 January 2010 and 30 January 2011 32,542 650,832
First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer 642 641,600

33,184 1,292,432
Consoldaton (1 10} — 129,243
Exercise of warrants 15 1,570
Second Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer 1,625 162,500
At 29 January 2012 34,824 293,313

The Company has two classes of share, Ordinary Shares and Deferred Shares The Ordinary Shares carry no
nght to fixed income and each Crdinary Share carries the night to one vote at general meetings of the Company
The Deferred Shares carry no rights

On 2 February 2011, the Company published a prospectus detailing a proposal to raise gross proceeds of
£315 millon through a Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer involving the issue of 630 rmullion new Ordinary
Shares at an 1ssue price of 5 pence per new Ordinary Share The gross proceeds of £31 5 million were receved
on 25 February 2011 Full details of the First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer are contained within the
prospectus pubhished on 2 February 2011

In conunction with the First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer, the Directors effected a Capital
Reorgarisation in crder to provide the Company with flexibility in relation to its capital structure in the future and

1o seek to reduce the impact of the volatiity iIn the Company's share price Under the Capital Reorganisation, all
existing Ordinary Shares were subdwded and reclassified into one new Crdinary Share of 01 pence and one
deferred share of 4 9 pence and all newly ssued Ordinary Shares wete issued as a new Ordinary Share of Q1p
There was then a consolidation such that all Ordinary Shares of 0 1p were consolidated on a 1 for 10 basis nto
Ordinary Shares of 1 pence each and all deferred shares were consolidated on a 1 for 10 basis mto consolidated
deferred shares of 49 pence each Following the Caprital Reorganisation, existing shareholders and shareholders
partcipating in the First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer held 1 Ordinary Share and (existing shareholders
only) 1 consolidated deferred share for every 10 existing Ordinary Shares held

At the same time as the First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer, the Company 1ssued warrants on
completion of the process to the firm placees participating in the Firm Placing in lieu of any placing commissions
and in consideration for, and pro rata to, therr binding agreements to subscribe for shares

On completion of the First Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer 1 accordance with its terms, Warrants were
issued as follows

> 9,338,626 Warrants for Hams Associates LP,

> 3,531,413 Warrants for Crystal Amber Fund Limited,

> 1,177,137 Warrants for Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation Trust,

> 1,569,517 Warrants for GoldenPeaks Capital Partners, and

> 9,108,198 Warrants for Invesco Asset Management Limited

Subject to Shareholder approval, the majonty of these warrants will be exercised as a result of transactions taken
place after the Statement of financial position date, see note 42 for further details

On 22 March 2011 the Company recewed notification from GeldenPeaks Captal Partners that # had exercised in
full its Warrants in respect of 1,569,517 ordinary shares of 1 pence each (the “Warrant Shares”) at an exercise price
of 156 25 pence per share The total subscription proceeds recenved by the Company as a result were £239,351

At a general meeting of the Company held on 22 March 2011, Shareholders approved a resolution to cancel
admussion of the Ordinary Shares to Iisting on the premium segmenit of the Official List and to trading on the
London Stock Exchange's mamn market for bisted secunties and for an apphication to be made for admission of
those Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM
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26 Share capital (continued)

On 28 Apnl 2011, AIM Admission took place and dealings in Ordinary Shares (including the newly 1ssued Ordinary
Shares) started on AIM at 8 00a m on 28 Apnl 2011

On 6 Aprl 2011, the Company published a further Prospectus detalling a proposal to raise gross proceeds of £65
mullon through a Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer Involving the 1ssue of 162 5 milion new Ordinary Shares
at anssue price of 40 pence per new Ordinary Share The CVA proposal was approved and the gross proceeds
of £65 millon were receved on 27 April 2011 Full details of the Second Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer
are contaned within the Prospectus published on 6 Apnl 2011

In connection with the April 2011 Capital Raising, a resolution was passed by the independent shargholders at

the general meeting held on 26 Aprit 2011 approving a wawver by the Takeovar Pane! of any obligation which would
otherwise falt on IAML or Crystal Amber (who are deemed to be actng in concert with each other for the purposes
of the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers {the “Code”)) to make a general offer to the shareholders of the
Company pursuant to Rule 9 of the Code as a result of the Apnl 2011 Capital Raising and/or the exercise of any

or all of the warrants that were 1ssued to IAML and Crystal Amber on 24 February 2011

As at 4 Apnl 2012, IAML held warrants to subscnbe for 9,103,198 new Ordinary Shares and Crystal Amber held
warrants to subscribe for 3,531,413 new Ordinary Shares in the Company on the terms of the Warrant Instrument
dated 24 February 2011 Howaever, In connection with the strategic Investment and financing packags that the
Board 15 announcing today, both IAML and Crystal Amber have agreed to exercise all of therr outstanding warrants
at an exercise price of 10 pence per share

27 Share based payments

(a) Share option schemes
The Company has outstanding options under the following schemes

Number of Number of

Ordinary Ordinary

Shares of Shares of

1p each at 1p each at
29 January 30 January Exercise pnce Exercise
Date of grant 2012 2011 per share expiry date
1) 1999 Unapproved scheme 23 November 2004 - 54,294 20075 221114

1) 1899 Inland Revenue approval

scheme 23 November 2004 — 32,875 20075 221114
1y 2006 Unapproved scheme 09 October 2008 - 5,624 18 00 81018
iv) 2006 Long term incentive plan 05 November 2009 143,332 735,589 — 041119
02 June 2010 750,000 800,000 - 0106 20

Note Numnber of Ordinary Shares as at 30 January 2011 amended to take account of the Capiial Reorgamisation

The exercise of options under the 2006 Long term incentive plan, 1S subject to a total shareholder retum
performance target, represented by share pnce plus dividends reinvested from the day of entitlerment The number
of options exercisable 1s directly inked to the relevant percentage nise In total shareholder retum over a three year
vasting pencd

The detalls of options granted to the Executive Directors under all these schemes, are set out in the Directors'
Remuneration report on page 28 of the Annual Report and are included in the above figures

Under the transitional provisions, the recogniion and measurement principles m IFRS 2 have not been appled to
grants of share options made before 7 November 2002 The fair value of options granted since 7 Novermnber 2002
Is measured using the Black Scholes pricing mode!
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27 Share based payments {continued)

(a) Share option schemes (continued)
The numiber and weighted average exercise price of the share options 1s as follows

29 January 2012 30 January 2011
Weighted Waighted
average average
Number of exercise price Number of  exercise price
options {pence) oplions (pence)
Qutstanding at the start of the period 1,628,382 106 8p 2,551,822 147 2p
Granted during the period - - 971,429 -
Forfeited duning the period {735,050) 239 5p (1,894,869) 106 Bp
Qutstanding at the end of the pericd 893,332 - 1,628,382 106 8p

Exercisable at the end of the pencd - - - -

Note Number of Qrdinary Shares as at 30 January 2011 amended to take account of the Capital Reorganisation

The options outstanding at 29 January 2012 have an exercise price of £nil and a weighted average remaming
contracted Iife of 8 3 years

The share price dunng the accounting perod of 52 weeks to 29 January 2012 ranged between 5 20 pence and
31 50 pence and the closing mid market price at Fnday 27 January 2012 was 11 50 pence (after the impact of the
110 share consolidation, see note 26 for further details) The total debit to the Consolidated statement of financial
performance for the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012 relating to employee share based payments was £1,710,000
(2011 £2,545,000)

{b) Sharesave plans

Dunng the accounting pernod of 52 weeks to 27 January 2008, the Group offered options to all employees with
over 12 months’ service to purchase Ordinary Shares under its 2007 Sharesave Plan This Plan ts an Inland
Revenue approved Save As You Eamn (“SAYE”) savings contract Inland Revenue rules limit the maximurm amount
saved under the savings contract to £250 per month The options were offered at a fixed set price calculated at
the start of the three or five years term of the SAYE savings contract by applying a discount of 20 per cent to the
market price of JUB's Ordinary Shares in September 2007 The options under the Sharesave plan may normally be
exercised during the periad of six months after the completion of the three or five year term of the SAYE savings
contract There are no performance conditions attached to these options  The three year term reached completion
during the accounting period ended 30 January 2011

Dunng the accounting period of 53 weeks to 31 January 2010, the Group offered further options to all employees
with over six months’ service to purchase Ordinary Shares under the 2007 Sharesave Plan The conditions are
similar ta the 2007 invitation under the Sharesave Plan referred to above, except that the term s for three years
only, and the options were offered at a fixed set price calculated at the start of the three year term of the SAYE
savings contract by applying a discount of 20 per cent to the market price of JUB's Ordinary Shares during
Qctober 2008 The scheme started on 1 February 2010

During the accounting period of 52 weeks to 30 January 2011, the Group offered further options to all employees
with over six months’ service to purchase Ordinary Shares under the 2007 Shargsave Plan The conditions are
similar to the 2009 invitation under the Sharesave Plan and the scheme startad on 1 February 2011

Weighted

Number of average

DpilOﬂS exercise pnce

Qutstanding at 31 January 2010 8,606 1690 Op
Granted 627,376 2320p
Forferted (554,844) 240 5p
Qutstanding at 30 January 2011 81,138 328 4p
Granted 1,324,073 777p
Forferted (917,320) 94 Op
Outstanding at 28 January 2012 487,891 89 Op

Note Number of options above takes account of the Capital Reorgarisation of 1 for 10 Ordinary Shares i February 2011
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27 Share based payments (continued}

(b) Sharesave plans (continued)
The options under the 2007 Sharesave plan offered in September 2007 comprised 616 Ordinary Shares with
an option expiry date of 1 November 2012

The ophons under the 2007 Sharesave plan offered in November 2009 compnsed 29,147 Ordinary Shares with
an option expiry date of 31 January 2013

The options under the 2007 Sharesave plan offered in November 2010 comprised 458,128 Ordinary Shares
with an option expiry date of 31 January 2014

The details of options under the 2007 Sharesave plan taken up by the Executive Directors are set out in the
Drrectors’ Remuneration report on page 28 of the Annual Report

28 Share premium account

Group and

Company

£ 000

Balance at 31 January 2010 and 30 January 2011 174,055

First and Second Firm Placing and Placing and QOpen Offer (see note 26) 83,942

Exercise of warrants {(see note 26) 224

Balance at 29 Janvary 2012 258,221
29 Caprttal reclemption reserve

Group and

Company

£'000

Balance at 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 1,069

30 Investment in own shares

Group and

Company

2000

Balance at 30 January 2011 and 29 January 2012 3,083

The investment in own shares represents the cost of 169,571 Ordinary Shares (after the Capital Recrgarrsation)
n the Company purchased in the market in August 2006 at 1818 3 pence and held by the JJB Sports pic
Employee Benefit Trust to be used to satisfy options granted under the Group's Long Term Incentive Plan, see
note 27a of these Notes to the Financial statements

31 Share based payment reserve

Group and

Company

£'000

Balance at 31 January 2010 448
Charged in the period 2,545
Balance at 30 January 2011 2,993
Charges in the perniod 1,710
Balance at 29 January 2012 4,703

The Share based payment reserve represents the far value of options, at grant date, in accordance with IFRS 2
"Share based payments’ (see note 27 of these Notes to the Financial statements)
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32 Foreign currency translation reserve

Group and
Company
£'000
Balance at 31 January 2010 (41)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (662)
Balance at 30 January 2011 (703)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (126)
Balance at 29 January 2012 (829)
33 Retained earnings (losses)
Group Company
£ 000 £ 000
Balance at 31 January 2010 18,563 {110,507)
Loss after taxation for the period (181,365)  (205,565)
Balance at 30 January 2011 {162,802) (316,072)
Loss after taxation for the period {(101,129) (72,009)
Balance at 29 January 2012 (263,931) (388,081)
34 Contingent habilities
CVA

On 3 March 2011, the Company and tts subsidiary, Blane Leisure bmited launched a proposal to enter into

a CVA On 22 March 2011, the CVA proposals made by the Company and Blane Leisure Lirmited received the
approval of the requisite majonty of creditors and members of each Company On 23 March 2011 the CVA
became partially effective, with full iImplementation conditional on further events

Following the expiry of a 28 day challenge peniod on 21 Apnl 2011, the CVA proposal was fully mplemented
upon receipt of the gross proceeds from the Second Firm Placing and Placing and Open Offer on 27 Apnl 2011

As part of the compromise of the clam of the landlords within the Apnl 2011 CVA, the Company has agreed to
the creation of a Compromised Lease Fund 10 affected landlords Full detalls of this are included wathin note 23
relating to provisions

Full detalls of the CVA proposal are contaned within the Investment circular issued to shareholders on 3 March 2011
Other contingent habilities

The Company has contingent liabilities in connection with contractual obligations arising under certan trading
contracts At the present time it 1s not possible te quantify any cash outflow with respect to these matters
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35 Reconciliation of operating loss 1o net cash from operating activiies

Group

52 weeks to 52 weeks to
29 January 30 January

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Operating loss from conhnuing operations {103,450) {181,812)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,081 9,269
Amortisation of other intangible assets 2,913 3,294
Imparment of ntangible fixed assets 7,829 —
Impairment of goodwill - 92,610
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and eguipment 1,802 582
Impairment of fixed assets of CVA stores 6,815 3,841
Impairment of fixed assets of loss making stores 4,748 -
Increase In provisions 8,684 5,775
Share based payment reserve 1,710 2,545
Bank loan costs (475) (125)

Operating cash flow before movements in werking capital

(61,343) {64,021)

Decrease In Inventornes

5,423 15,858

Decrease In trade and other recevables
Decrease In trade and other payables

1,011 15,082
(23,661)  (39.904)

Cash used in operations

(78,570) _ (72,085)

Taxation

- 190

Net cash outflow from operating activities

(78,570) (71,895

Company
52 weeks to 52 weaks to
28 January 3¢ January

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Operating loss from continuing operations (74,325)  (205,871)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,543 7,641
Amortsation of other intangible assets 2,913 3,294
Impairment of investment in subsidiary - 147,680
Impairment of intangible fixed assels 7,829 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and sguipment 804 275
Imparment of fixed assets of CVA stores 5,710 3,481
Bank loan costs (475) (125)
Increase In provisions 6,948 1,807
Share based payment reserve 1,710 2,545
Qperating cash fiow before movements in working capital {42,343) (39,273)
Decrease in inventornes 6,477 11,488

{Increase) decreass In trade and other recevables

(2,601) 12,487

Decrease In payables

(37,005) {54,626}

Cash used in operations

(75472)  (69.914)

Taxation

(493}

Net cash outflow from operating activities

{75,472) (70,407)
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36 Analysis of net debt
Group
At Other At
30 January non-cash 29 January
201 Cash flow items 2012
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Cash and cash equivalents 5,859 {1,261) 40 4,638
Non-current hability
Bank loans (24,678) 8,763 - (15,915)
Net debt (18,819) 7,502 40 (11,277)
Company
Al Other At
30 January non-cash 29 January
2011 Cash flow items 2012
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 735 2,159 — 2,894
Non-current hability
Bank loans (24,678) 8,763 — (15,915)
Net debt (23,943) 10,922 - (13,021}
37 Capital commitments
Group Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Capttal commitments 1,350 - 1,350 -

Capital commitments represent costs in respect of additions to property, plant and equipment on leasehold
properties on which legal contracts have been exchanged at the Consolidated statement of financial position date
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38 Operating lease arrangements

{(a) The Group and Company as lessee

The Group and the Company have entered into non-cancellable operating leases in respect of certan land and
bulldings The rentals charged to the Group for the accounting period were £40,986,000 (2611 £52,303,000) and
for the Company were £29,360,000 (2011 £34,893,000) In addition all nsurance, mantenance and repairs are
paid on these properties

The Group and the Company have entered nto non-cancsllable operating leases in respect of plant and
equipment The annual rentals charged to the Group for the accounting period were £392,000 (2011 £700,000)
and for the Company were £304,000 {2011 £577,000)

At the Consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

Land and Land and Plant and Plant and
buildings buldings equipment equipment
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 201 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £:000 £ 000
Group
Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year 43,807 56,377 96 203
In the second to fifth year inclusive 127,043 209,714 - -
After 5 years 154,429 307,342 - -
325,279 573,433 96 203
Land and Land and Plant and Plant and
builldings buldings equipment equpment
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £'000 £.000
Company
Operating leases which expire
Within 1 year 27,389 38,456 73 179
In the second to fifth year inclusve 76,729 141,970 - -
After 5 years 96,849 213,524 - -
200,967 383,850 73 179

Qutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments on land and buildings represent future rentals
payable by the Group for stand-alone retall stores and the 2 combined fitness clubs/superstores Stand-alone
retall store leases have an average nikal term of 15 years whilst leases for the 2 combined fitness clubs/
superstores have an average initial term of 25 years Rentals under these property leases are usually fixed for an
average of five years No pravision within the outstanding commitments has been made for any increase in costs
ansing from future rent reviews

Included in the outstanding commitments for future minmmum lease payments on land and bulldings are
commitments relating to the leases on those retall stores which were closed in April 2008 as a result of the
restructunng of the retait store chain, referred to In note 23 of these Motes to the Financial statements

The cutstanding commitments for future minmum lease payments on land and bulldings also include
commitments relating to leases due to be closed under the CVA fully mplemented on 27 Apnil 2011 (see note 34)
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38 Operating lease arrangements (continued)

{b) The Group and Company as lessor

The leases on certan stand-alone retail stores which are no longer operated by the Group have been sub-let to

third parties The property rental Income receved during the accounting peried for the Group was £812,000 (2011

£965,000) and for the Company was £213,000 (2011 £99,000) The Group's sub-let properties have average

remaining lease commitments of two years |

At the Consolidated statement of financial position date, the Group had contracts with sub-tenants for the following
future minimum lease rentals

Group Company

29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January

2012 2011 2012 2011 -

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 '

Operating leases which expire

Within 1 year 856 695 269 78
In the second to fifth years inclusive 1,780 1,314 674 -
After 5 vears 1,027 1,303 - -
3,663 3,312 943 78

39 Financial instruments

(a) Caprtal nsk managerment

The Group manages its capital to ensure that enties in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while
maximising the return to stakehelders through the optmisation of the debt and equity balance The Group’s overall
strategy remans unchanged from pnar period

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borowings disclosed in note 22 of these
Notes to the Financial statements, cash and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in notes 26 to 33 of these
Notes to the Financial statements

The Group 1s not subject to any externally imposed capttal requirements

The Board reviews the capital structure on a regular basis As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital The gearing ratio at 29 January 2012 was 3 9 per cent
{see below)

Detalls of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the
basts of measurement and the basts on which income and expense are recognised, in respect of each class
of inancial asset, financial lability and equity instruments are disclosed In the Statement of accounting policies
on pages 40 to 48 of these Financial statements

{b} Geanng ratio
The geanng ratio at the pened end 1s as follows

29 January 30 January

2012 201

£000 £'000
Debt (15,915) (24,678)
Cash and cash equivalents 4,638 5,859
Net debt (11,277) (18,819)
Equity 291,031 204,583
Net debt to equity ratio 39% 9 2%

Debt 15 defined as long and short term borrowings (excluding dervatves and financial guarantee contracts) as
detailled in note 22 of these Notes to the Financial statements
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39 Financial nstruments (continued)

{b) Geanng ratio (continued)

Equrty Includes share capital, share premium account, capital redemption reserve and the investment in own
shares (together ‘the caprtal reserves’) Given the substantal losses being recerded in the retained losses reserve
aver the past years, we monitor the geanng ratio with respect to the capital reserves only to provide a more stable
basis to make like for like comparsons

({c) Categones of financial instruments

Group Company
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 201 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Financial assets

Investments in subsidianes - — 20,894 20,894
Loans and receivables 7,792 9,077 14,753 19,311
Cash and cash equivalents 4,638 5,859 2,894 735

Financial kabiliies

Faur value through profit and loss 958 113 958 113

Amoriised cost 98,092 122,307 219,287 258,582

{d} Financial nsk management objectives

The Group’s and Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access
to domestic and international financial markets, monitars and manages the financial nsks refating to the cperations
of the Group and Gompany through intemal nsk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of
risks These nisks include market risk ncluding currency risk, interest rate nsk and price nsk), credit nsk, lquidity
risk and cash flow interest rate risk

{e) Market risk
The Group's and Company’s activities expose It primarily to the financtal risks of changes in foreign currency
exchangs rates and interest rates

(f) Foreign currency risk management
The Group and Company undertakes certain transactions denominated in US dollars and therefore has exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations

(g) Interest rate nsk management

The Group and Company finance therr operations through a revolving bank credit facility The revohing bank crecht
facility was arranged at interest rates fixed to LIBOR and therefore the Group and Company 18 exposed to nterest
rate nsk on these borrowings No interest rate hedging agreement 1s currently n place because given the level of
borrowings and the current interest rate environment, the Board does not consider fluctuations in interest rates

to pose a sianificant risk to the Group and Company
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39 Financial instruments (continued)

(h) Credit nsk management

Credit nsk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the Group and Company The Group and Company have adopted a pokcy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of miigating the nsk of financial loss from defaults The Group and Compary only
transact with entities that have a good credit rating The Group and Compary uses publicly avallable financial
information and its own trading records to rate its major customers The Group's and Company's exposure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monttored and contralled by the Treasury department

As the principal business of the Group and Company ts retall related, trade receivables consist of a relatively small
number of customers, although spread across diverse business sectors Ongoing credit evaluation 1s performed
on the financial condition of accounts receivable

The carrying amaurtt of financial assets recordled in the Financial statements represents the Group's and
Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk

{1) Financial instruments carried at far value

The Groups financial nstruments held at far value are warrants and the farr values of these are £858,000 (2011
£113,000) These are categonised as Leve! 2 which are those denved from inputs other than unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets (Leve! 1 categonsation) that are observable for the asset or iability, ether directly

{le as pnices) or indirecily (e denved from pnces) The key assumptions involved in the far value adjustment
of the warrants were volatility of 1274 (2011 124 3), market interest rate of 101 per cent (2011 138 per cent),
and an end date of 21 February 2014 {2011 30 September 2012), resulting n a call option price of 4 pence
(2011 1 pence)

() Liquidity nsk management

Uttimate responsibility for iquidity nsk management rests with the Board of Drectors The Group and Cormpany
has sought to manage lquidity nsk by mamntaining adequate reserves and banking faciiies and by continuously
monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows Notwithstanding these measures the adverse trading conditions
experienced duning 2011 has resulted in significant iquidity problems

The followng table details the Group’s and Company’s remaining contractual maturity of its non-dervative financial
labilittes The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial kabiities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and Company can be required to pay the lability The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows The nterest rates used in respect of the loan notes were at the basis points below LIBOR
as stipulated by the loan agreement

Group
Lessthan
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Totab
29 January 2012 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 45,689 - - 45,689
Bank loans and overdrafts - - 18,057 18,057
45,689 - 18,057 63,746
Group
Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2 Hyears Total
30 January 2011 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Trade and other payablas 68,384 - — 68,384
Bank loans — - 24,678 24,678

68,384 - 24,678 93,062
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39 Financial instruments (continued)
{)) Lquidity nsk managerment (continued)

Company
Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
28 January 2012 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Trade and other payables 177,139 - - 177,139
Bank loans - - 18,057 18,057
177,139 - 18,057 195,196
GCompany
Less than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5vyears Total
30 January 201 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 213,419 - - 213,419
Bank loans - — 24,678 24,678
213,419 - 24,678 238,087

40. Retremment benefit schemes

Defined contnbution schemes
The Group contnbutes to the personal pension schemes and stakeholder schemes of certain Executive Directors
and senior executives

The total cost charged to the Consolidated statement of financial performance for the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012
was £389,000 (2011 £229,000)

41 Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties who are members of the Group
The Company entered into the following transactions with related parties who are members of the Group

Duning the 52 weeks to 29 January 2012, the Company has supplted product for resale 1o Blane Leisure Limited
of £49,608,000 (2011 £58,661,000), to Sports Dnvision (Erreann) Limited of £4,321,000 (2011 £2,284,000) These
transactions are recorded as inter-company transfers and not revenue of the Company In addticn, the Company
receved a management charge from Blane Leisure Limited of £10,522,000 (2011 £14,747,000) and from Sports
Division (Erreanny Limited of £118,000 {2011 £121,000) These balances are settled through inter-company
accounts

As at 29 January 2012, the Company had the folowing balances outstanding with refated parties

Amounts owed by Amaounts owed o

subsidiary undertakings subsidiary undertakings
29 January 30 January 29 January 30 January
2012 2011 2012 201
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Blane Leisure Limited - - 88,119 105,404
Sports Diviston (Eireann) Limited - - 17,849 19,009
Dormant subsidianes 4,152 4,152 29,462 20,444

4,152 4,152 135,430 153,857




77 JJB Sports plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012 Overview
Business remaw
Governance
Financial statements @
Corporate nformabion

42 Evenis after the Statement of financial position date

On 4 April 2012, the Board announced details of a strategic nvestment and financing package with a number
of the Comipany's key stakehclders and Dick’s, a new strategic partner

The Company intends to raise £30 milion (before expenses) in aggregate by way of the exercise of 2011 Warrants
and the rssue of the Subscription Shares and the First Convertible Loan Notes, conditional, among other things,
upon the passing of the Subscription Resolutions at the General Meeting

IAML, Harns Assoclates, Crystal Amber and Gates Foundation, the Company's four largest shareholders, and

Diek’s, have entered into a Subscnption Agreement with the Company pursuant to whuch

> IAML, Hams Associates, Crystal Amber and Gates Foundation have agreed to exercise 2011 Warrants resulting
in the 1ssue of 22,712,894 Warrant Shares at an exercise prnice of 10 pence per share,

> IAML, Hamns Associates, Crystal Amber, Gates Foundation and Dick’s have agreed to subscnbe for a total of
89,787,106 Subscription Shares at 10 pence per share, and

> Dick’s has agreed to subscnbe for the First Convertible Loan Notes in an aggregate prncipal amount of €18 75
milkon and has been granted the nght (but does not have the abligation) to subscribe for the Second Convertible
Loan Notes In an aggregate principal amount of up to £20 millon, in each case subject to the terms and
conditions set out In the Convertible Loan Nota Instrument

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Loan Note Instrument, the First Convertible Loan Notes and the Second
Convertible Loan Notes will convert into a maximum of 887,871,178 Ordinary Shares representing approximately
61 per cent of the Company's then fully diluted share capital

On 4 April 2012, the Board also announced that it had reached agreement with BoS, the Company’s lender,
regarding the continued provision of the BaS Facility through to 31 May 2015, an agreement with adidas Group,
one of the Company’s key supplier pariners, for the provision of a loan of up to £15 millon and the terms of an
ntercreditor arrangement with BoS, Dick’s and adidas Group, each agreement subject to completion of the
Subscnption and the satisfaction of certain other condiions precedent

The strategic Investment and financing package requires shareholder approval In particular, the Subscription
and the Rule 9 Wawvers are condihonal on, among other things, the passing of the Subscrnphon Resolutions by
Shareholders at a General Meeting
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Five year summary

For the accounting periods ending January

2012 201 2010 re»preseznotgg 2008
Group trading results £'000 £'000 £ 000 ‘000 £ 000
Revenue 284,206 362,894 372,483 847,784 811,754
Cost of sales (182,722) (238,020) (230,416) (351,386) (405.642)
Gross profit 101,484 124,874 142,077 296,398 406,112
Net operating expenses (204,934) (306,686) (209,389) (456,031) (394,817)
Operating floss) profit from
continuing cperations {103,450) (181,812) (67,312)  (159,633) 11,285
Adjusted operating (loss) profit {56,242) (73,856) (67,731) {20,159) 34,269
Exceptional tems — goodwill impasrment - {92,610) - {82,279) -
— other exceptional tems (47,208) (15,346) 418 (57,199) {22,974)
Operating (loss) profit from
continuing operations (103,450) (181,812) (67,312) (159,633} 11,295
Investment revenue 113 512 2,704 10,239 11,551
Finance costs (566) {1,162) (3,685) (22,704) (12,442)
Finance costs are stated after charging
Exceptional bank arrangement fees
and charges - (100) {500) {10,974) —
Other gains and losses - — - 1,989 —
Share of results of associated undertaking - — - {(103) 396
Farr value on denvative mstruments 3,048 1,919 903 - -
Debt 1ssue costs (274) {822) (1,202} — -
(Loss) profit before taxation (101,129)  (181,385) (68,592) (170,212} 10,800
Taxation - — 7475 16,429 1,170)
(Loss) profi after taxation from
continuing operations (101,129}  (181,365) (61,117} (153,783} 9,630
Profit {loss) from discontinued operations - - 6,534 (13,773) —
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations
Is stated after (charging) crediting
Impairment of fitness club fixed assets - — - (29,143) —
(Loss) gan on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - — (258) 5,941 —
Release of deferred lease incentives - — 7,582 - -
- - 7,324 (23,202} -
(Loss) profit after taxation {101,129)  (181,365) {54,583) (187,556) 9,630
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Business review
Governance
Financia! statements @
Carparate nformation
Financial statements
Five year summary contnued
For the accounting perods ending January
2009
2012 2011 2010 re-presented 2008
Consolidated statement of financial position €000 ¢ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'0C0
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13,796 13,796 106,408 106,406 187,834
Other intangible assets 10,405 20,175 22,369 24,600 25417
Property, plant and equipment 46,091 64,809 74,691 162,044 198,272
Investment in associated undertaking - - - 750 1677
L oan o associate underiaking - - - - 4,000
70,292 98,830 203,466 293,800 417,200
Currert assets 59,732 67,661 321,978 321,542 372,348
Current labilmes (53,135) (75133) (285,362) (378,349) (301,647)
Net current assets (labiibes) 6,597 {T472) 36,6186 {56,807) 70,701
Non-curent labilihes (45,915) (47,287) {16,529) (52,362) (122,846)
Net assets 30,974 44 071 223,553 184,631 365,055
Financed by
Share caprtal 34,824 32,542 32,542 12,542 11,944
Share premium account 258,221 174,055 174,055 174,055 171,248
Capital redemption reserve 1,069 1,069 1,069 1,068 1,069
Investment in own shares {3,083) {3,083) (3,083) {3,083) {3,083)
Share based payment reserve 4,703 2,893 448 635 680
Foreign currency translation reserve (829) (703) (41) 338 (1,211)
Retained earnings (263,931) (162,802) 18,563 (925) 184,408
Equity shargholders’ funds 30,974 44,071 223,553 184,631 365,055
Key statistics
Total dwvidends paid or proposed - - — — 10 00p
Basic {loss) earnings per Ordinary Share (40 40)p {72 45)p* (2084  (5428)p* 407
Diluted (loss) earnmgs per Ordinary Share (39 00)p (7245)p" (2084)p™ (B4 28)p™ 407p™
Key performance indicators
Change In lke-for-like revenue {131%) +59% (26 6%) (5 6%) +02%
Gross margin +357% +34 4% +381% +45 8% +500%
Cash flow from operations (78,570) (71,895) (81,023) 37,859 46,349
Adjusted basic (loss) earnings per
Ordinary Share (2154)p (2933)p (20 38)p {6 35)p 10 89p
Net (debt) funds (11,277) (18,819) 58,812 (34,362) {42,156}
Inventories 47,302 52,725 68,582 70,569 114,984
Retall seling space at penod end {'000sq fi) 2,095 2,748 2,777 3,674 4,348
Number of Full Time Equivalent Employeses 2,866 3,779 4,628 8,123 8,833

*  The number of Ordinary Shares n 1ssue for the penod ended 30 Jaruary 2011 has been represented to take account retrospectvely of the
Firm Ptacing and Open Offers completed dunng February 2011 and Apnl 2011

“* As previously reported
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Corporate information
Corporate information

Financial calendar

Audited results announced 4 Apnl 2012
Annual General Meeting July 2012
Intenm results published Est September 2012
End of current accounting penod 27 January 2013
Preliminary results announced Est April/May 2013
Ordinary shares trading information Registrars
JJB Sports plc Ordinary Shares are quoted onthe AM  Capita Regrstrars
Market of the London Stock Exchange The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Symbol JJB Beckenham
ISIN number GB0004685235 Kent
Admrssion to trading on AIM 28 April 2011 BR3 4TU

investor relations and Company Secretary
Dave Willams

4B Sports ple,

Martiand Park,

Challenge Way, Wigan,

Lancashire

WNS5 OLD

Telephone 01942 221400

Shareholder documents such as the Annual Report
and Financial statements are avalable electronically on
the JJB corporate website at www jbcorporate co uk
or by emal If you would like to receve notification

by emall that such documents are available on the
website, you should register your email address at
gbennett@bsports com

Please direct all enquines concerning dwidends, share
certificates, share transfers and changes of address
to Capita Registrars

Telephone 0871 664 0300
Lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Fnday
(Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network extras)

Capita online enquiry service at www capitaregistrars
com/shareholders/contact Shareholders can register

the appointment of a proxy electronically via the internet

at www capitaregistrars com/shargholders

To help protect your shareholding aganst identty theft,

please tell Capita Registrars if you change your address

or if you don’t receve your dmvidend payment If you
have a certificated shareholding, please keep your
share cerlfficate in a safe place Tax vouchers should
alsc be kept safe

Capita Share Dealing Services offer a quick and

easy share dealing service 1o etther buy or sell the
Company's shares, etther on-line or by telephone at
www capitadeal com/{on-ine dealing)

Call 0871 664 0364 for telephone dealing Lines are
open 8 G0am to 4 30pm Monday to Fnday This 1s not
a recommendation to buy or sell JJB Ordinary Shares
(Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus network extras)

Company registration

JJB Sports plc

Registered in England and Wales
Company No 1024895

Registered Office
Martland Park
Challenge Way
Wigan

Lancashire

WN5 OLD

Customer services
Emall onlineenquines@jpbsports com
Telephone 0871 6412200
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Corporate information contnued

Directors, Company Secretary
and Advisers

Directors

Mike McTighe (Chairman)

Keith Jones {Chief Executive Officen)

Dave Willams {Chief Financial Officer)

David Adams {Senior Independent
Non-Executive Director)

Rrchard Bemstein {Non-Executive Drrector)

Sir Matthew Pinsent CBE  {Independent
Non-Executive Director)

Lawrence Chnstensen (Independent
Non-Executive Director)

The business address of each of the Directors 1s
Martland Park, Challenge Way, Wigan, Lancashire,
WNS5 0LD, United Kingdom

Company Secretary
Dave Withams

Registered office, address and main switchboard
number

Martland Park

Challenge Way

Wigan

Lancashire

WN5 OLD

Tel +44 (011942 221 400

Financial Adviser, Jont Broker and Nominated
Adviser

Nurmnis Secunties Limited

The London Stock Exchange Bulding

10 Paternoster Square

iLondon

ECaM 7LT

Jomt Brokers

Panmure Gordon & Co plc
155 Moorgate

Lonclon

EC2M 6XB

The paper used in this report 1s elermental chiorine free (ECF) fibre,
sourced from well managed forests and s FSG certified

Designed and produced by The College www the-college com

Solicitors

Herbert Smith LLP
Exchange House
Pnmrose Street
London

EC2A 2HS

Audifor

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
PO Box 500

2 Hardrman Street

Manchester

MB0 2AT

Bankers

Bank of Scotiand
40 Spring Gardens
Manchester

M2 1EN

Registrars

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckertham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Financial Publhic Relations
Maitland

Oron House

5 Upper St Martin's Lane
London

WC2H 9EA
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